
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting    

Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street 
Commissioner Call-In Optional 

July 10, 2017 12:00 p.m. 

A G E N D A 

I.    CALL TO ORDER………………………………………………………………………………………….Chair Hale 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS……………………………………………………..........................Chair Hale

III. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Expenses
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – June 2017

B. Minutes and Reports 
1. Approval of Meeting Minutes from June 12, 2017

C. Other 
1. Approve Resolution 1497: CCDC Alley Program, Utility Undergrounding Contract with Idaho Power

[Informational item 6-12-2017, NTE $203,000] 

2. Approve Resolution 1501: Approval of 1420 W. Front Street – Verraso Apartments - Type One
Participation Agreement with Envision 360, Inc. [Designation 6-12-2017, NTE $150,000]

3. Approve Resolution 1502: Approval of 11th & Myrtle – Pioneer Corner – Type Four Participation
Agreement with BVGV Parcel B, LLC [Designation 6-12-2017, NTE $100,000].

IV.  ACTION ITEM

A. CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1500: Awarding 2017 Streetscape Improvements Contract (5 mins)
…….…………………………………………………………………………………………….…… Mary Watson 

B. CONSIDER: The Afton Phase II Proposed Design Revisions (10 mins) ……………… Shellan Rodriguez 

V. ADJOURN 
This meeting is being conducted in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable 
accommodations, including but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation in the meeting. For 
assistance with accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529). 

12:05 

12:10 





















CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting    

Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street 
June 12, 2017 12:00 p.m. 

MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Chair Zuckerman convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:01p.m. 

Present were: Commissioner Dana Zuckerman, Commissioner Scot Ludwig, Commissioner Ben 
Quintana, Commissioner Gordon Jones, Commissioner Pat Shalz, Commissioner Dave Bieter, and 
Commissioner Ryan Woodings. 

Absent Were: Commissioner John Hale, and Commissioner Maryanne Jordan 

Agency staff members present were: John Brunelle, Executive Director; Todd Bunderson, 
Development Director; Ross Borden, Finance Director, Max Clark, Parking & Facilities Director; 
Mary Watson, Attorney & Contracts Manager; Kathy Wanner, Contracts Specialist, Joey Chen, 
Controller, Shellan Rodriguez, Project Manager; Matt Edmond, Project Manager; Doug Woodruff, 
Project Manager; Karl Woods, Project Manager; Laura Williams, Executive Assistant/Development 
Specialist. Also present were Agency legal counsel, Ryan Armbruster. 

II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS

There were no changes/additions to the agenda.

III. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Expenses 

1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – May 2017
B. Minutes and Reports 

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes from May 8, 2017
C. Other 

1. Approve Resolution 1493: Approval and Adoption of Public Records Request Fee Schedule
2. Approve Resolution 1494: Approval of the Type One Participation Agreement with Energreen

Development Company, LLC [Designation 5-8-2017, NTE $150,000]
3. Approve Resolution 1499: Ratifying Sole Source Expenditure for Emergency Repairs to 10th

& Front Garage [$39,332]

Commissioner Shalz moved to approve the Consent Agenda.
Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion.

John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, made a comment regarding Consent Item C.1:

“We received an email yesterday that was clearly intended to go to all of the Commissioners.
So we have taken the step to provide a copy of that to each of you here at the meeting. We
think it’s important that information gets to you. What we have here is an individual asking for
specific aspects or details to be included in the policy that we’re asking you to adopt today.
From our thorough review of this and assessing this with our staff and attorneys it’s apparent
that all of this is already in the policy and they are in the packet as well.”

Commissioner Quintana made a comment regarding Consent Item B.1, recusing himself from
voting on the meeting minutes from the May 8 meeting as he was not present.



 
All said Aye. The motion carried 7-0. 
 

 
IV. ACTION ITEMS    

A. PUBLIC HEARING: Removal of Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards and Elements of 
Continuity Attachments from Central, River Myrtle – Old Boise, and Westside Downtown Urban 
Renewal Plans.  

 
Vice Chair Zuckerman opened the meeting for comment. There were no public comments made. 

 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution 1495 Removing the Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards and 
Elements of Continuity Attachments from Urban Renewal Plans. 
Matt Edmond, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report.  

Commissioner Shalz made a motion to adopt Resolution #1495 approving modification of urban 
renewal plans to remove outdated streetscape standards and elements of continuity attachments from 
Central, River Myrtle-Old Boise, and Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plans. 
 
Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 
All said Aye. The motion carried, 7-0. 
 

C. CONSIDER: Resolution 1496 Updating the Cooperative Agreement with Idaho Transportation 
Department for Front and Myrtle Resurfacing Project. 
Matt Edmond, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report. 

 

Commissioner Shalz made a motion to adopt Resolution #1496 approving an addendum to the 
cooperative agreement with Idaho Transportation Department to implement near term improvements 
identified by the Front & Myrtle Alternatives Analysis during its US20 resurfacing project in 2017, and 
authorizing the Agency’s Executive Director to execute the agreement.  

 

Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 

All said Aye. The motion carried 7-0.  

 

D. CONSIDER: 11th & Myrtle – Pioneer Corner – Type Four Participation Agreement Designation with 
BVGC Parcel B, LLC.  
 
Matt Edmond, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report. 

Commissioner Shalz made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 4 Participation Agreement 
with BVGC Parcel B, LLC for future Board approval. 

 

Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 

All said Aye. The motion carried 7-0.  

 

E. CONSIDER: Resolution 1498: Adopting New Procurement Policy. 
Mary Watson, CCDC Contracts Manager & Attorney, gave a report. 



Commissioner Shalz made a motion to adopt Resolution #1498 adopting a new Procurement Policy 
consistent with Chapter 28, Title 67, Idaho Code.  

Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 

All said Aye. The motion carried 7-0.  

 

F. CONSIDER: 1420 Front Street – Verraso - Type One Participation Agreement Designation with 
Envision 360, Inc. 
 

Laura Williams, CCDC Development Specialist, gave a report. 

Commissioner Shalz made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a final Type One Participation Agreement 
with Envision 360, Inc. for future Board approval.  

Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 

All said Aye. The motion carried 7-0.  

 

G. CONSIDER: 3200 Moore Street - Sandhill Crane - Type One Participation Agreement Designation 
with Boise City Ada County Housing Authority. 
 
Shellan Rodriguez, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report.  
 
Commissioner Shalz made a motion to direct staff to negotiate a final Type One Participation Agreement 
with the Boise City/Ada County Housing Authority for Board approval within the next 12 months.  
 
Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 
All said Aye. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. CCDC Alley Program, Utility Underground 5th to 3rd between Main and Idaho 

Matt Edmond, CCDC Project Manager, gave a report. 

 

B. Operations Report 
John Brunelle, CCDC Executive Director, gave a report.  

 
 

VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Shalz to go into executive session at 1:30p.m. to deliberate regarding 
acquisition of an interest in real property which is now owned by a public agency; consider records that are 
exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code; and communicate with legal counsel to 
discuss the legal ramifications and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet being litigated but 
imminently likely to be litigated [Idaho Code Section 74-206(1)(c),(d) and (f)]. 
 
A roll call vote was taken: 
Commissioner Hale; Absent 
Commissioner Zuckerman; Aye 
Commissioner Shalz; Aye 
Commissioner Ludwig; Aye 
Commissioner Jones; Aye 



Commissioner Woodings; Aye 
Commissioner Jordan; Absent 
Commissioner Quintana; Aye 
Commissioner Bieter; Aye 
 
The motion carried 7-0 
 
Pending litigation was discussed.  
 
VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION ADJOURN 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Shalz to adjourn executive session at 1:28p.m. and return to the public 
meeting. Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion.  
 
A roll call vote was taken: 
Commissioner Hale; Absent 
Commissioner Zuckerman; Aye 
Commissioner Shalz; Aye 
Commissioner Ludwig; Aye 
Commissioner Jones; Aye 
Commissioner Woodings; Aye 
Commissioner Jordan; Absent 
Commissioner Quintana; Aye 
Commissioner Bieter; Aye 
 
The motion carried 7-0 
  
VIII. REGULAR MEETING ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Commissioner Shalz to 
adjourn the meeting.  

Commissioner Woodings seconded the motion. 

All said Aye. The motion carried, 7-0. 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:29p.m. 

- - - - 
 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ON 
THE 10TH DAY OF July, 2017.   

 

 

___________________________________ 
John Hale, Chair 
 
 
 __________________________________  
Ryan Woodings, Secretary/Treasurer  

 



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Contract Award for Idaho Power Undergrounding Utilities 
(Alley from 5th to Old Assay Office)  

Date: 
July 10, 2017 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution No. 1497 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1497 approving an agreement with Idaho Power for 
undergrounding in the alley between Main and Idaho from 5th to 3rd  

 
Background: 
 
CCDC is in the process of undergrounding overhead utility lines to improve a number of 
downtown alleys as non-traditional public spaces. The first set of alleys in this current 
effort are the three that run between City Hall and the Old Assay Office. The developers 
for the 5th & Idaho project have already completed undergrounding of all overhead 
utilities in the westernmost of these alleys, between 5th and 6th Streets, pursuant to an 
amended Type 4 Participation Agreement with CCDC. 
 
Undergrounding utility lines consists of two separate scopes of work. The first is 
replacement of overhead primary power lines and pole-mounted transformers with 
underground primary lines and surface-mounted transformers, and removal of poles. 
The second scope of work is replacement of overhead service and telecommunication 
lines to individual customers with underground lines, and modification of service panels 
and building services as necessary. As the publicly regulated electrical utility in the City 
of Boise, Idaho Power is the only entity that can perform the first scope of work. CCDC 
submitted a task order and payment of $3,500 to Idaho Power to design this effort, and 
Idaho Power returned a quote of $202,980 to procure this work. While most of the work 
will occur in early 2018, Idaho Power requires advance payment to start securing 
necessary easements and scheduling resources.  
 
 



Page 2 

The second scope of work will be performed by a public works contractor contracted 
directly with CCDC in FY2018. The current estimate for this work is $231,000. Note: 
Although this work is performed by a separate contractor rather than Idaho Power, 
Idaho Power owns these service lines between the transformer and the meters. 

Fiscal Notes: 

The Agency’s FY2017 budget includes sufficient funding to contract with Idaho Power 
for $202,980 for these utilities services. 

Next Steps: 

• Autumn 2017: Idaho Power secures easements for transformers
• Spring 2018: Utility undergrounding between 5th and 3rd Streets, concurrent with

ACHD alley stormwater project in alley between 5th and 4th Streets
• Summer 2018: All three alleys between City Hall and Old Assay Office improved

with utilities undergrounded and concrete and paver surface

Staff Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 1497 approving an agreement with Idaho Power for 
undergrounding in the alley between Main and Idaho from 5th to 3rd. 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1497 approving an agreement with Idaho Power for 
undergrounding in the alley between Main and Idaho from 5th to 3rd. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1497 - 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1497 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND 
IDAHO POWER COMPANY FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Boise, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly published, conducted a 
public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”), 
and following said public hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 
1994, approving the River Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 

November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency seeks to encourage economic development by assisting with 
infrastructure and public facility improvements; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Power Company, with its principal office in Boise, Idaho, is a 

corporation that owns and operates electrical transmission lines and is regulated as a public 
utility company by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Idaho Public Utilities 
Commission; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in an effort to improve downtown alleys as non-traditional public spaces in 

general and the alleys between Boise City Hall and the Old Assay Office in particular, the 
electrical transmission lines located in the alley north of Main Street, from 3rd Street to 5th Street 
(the “Project Site”) must be undergrounded for both public safety and aesthetics reasons; and, 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1497 - 2  

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that it is in the public interest to contract with 
Idaho Power Company for undergrounding the electrical lines at the Project Site including the 
Agency reimbursing Idaho Power Company for that public improvement as specified in the 
Agreement; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Agreement and to authorize the Executive Director to execute same. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A, 
and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby is approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to execute 
the Agreement with Idaho Power Company for TWO HUNDRED TWO THOUSAND NINE 
HUNDRED EIGHTY and NO/100 DOLLARS ($202,980.00) and to execute all necessary 
documents required to implement the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to 
representations by the Agency staff and the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent 
to such actions have been met; and further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement 
or other documents are acceptable, upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said 
changes are consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the comments and 
discussions received at the July 10, 2017, Agency Board meeting; the Agency is further 
authorized to appropriate any and all funds contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any 
and all other duties required pursuant to said Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on July 10, 2017.  Signed 
by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners on July 10, 2017.   
 
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   
 
 
      BY:         
             John Hale, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:        
       Ryan Woodings, Secretary 
 



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Resolution No. 1497 Exhibit A



Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
 
Approve Resolution 1501: Approval of the Type One Participation 
Agreement with Envision 360, Inc. 
 

Date: 
 
7/10/2017 

Staff Contact: 
Laura Williams  

Attachments: 
1) Resolution 1501 

 
Action Requested: 
 
Adopt Resolution 1501 approving and authorizing the execution of the Type 1 Streetscape 
Grant Participation Agreement with Envision 360, Inc.  
 

Background: 

Envision 360, Inc. is a development company based out of Boise, Idaho with experience in 
multi-family renovation and development including the Lancaster Apartments on Hill Road. The 
developers are currently planning an 8-unit, for-rent apartment project at 1420 W. Front Street in 
the River Myrtle-Old Boise URD.  

The existing vacant warehouse will be renovated (or demolished if the foundation is deemed 
unusable) into a small “middle-housing” complex called Verraso. The project will include four 2-
bedroom units, three 3-bedroom units, and one 4-bedroom unit. Each unit will have a one-car 
garage located off the alley. The units range from 1,300 to 1,800 SF. Verraso was approved by 
Design Review on January 9, 2017. The developer plans to begin construction this summer, 
with and estimated completion of December 31, 2017.  

CCDC Board has approved the CCDC Participation Program which includes a Type 1 
Streetscape Grant Reimbursement. The Type 1 program is intended to, “assist smaller projects 
on their own schedule, often triggered by a tenant improvement.” The grant will reimburse for up 
to $150,000 of eligible expenses, hard costs for streetscapes and public improvements. This 
project meets the requirements of the Type One Program and also promotes a CCDC and City 
objective to bring more housing to downtown Boise. 

The public improvements on 15th street will follow the Urban Concrete standard as specified by 
the City of Boise in the Downtown Streetscapes Standards and Specifications Manual. The 
streetscapes will include concrete sidewalk, street trees, Silva Cells, historic streetlights, 
benches, bike racks, and irrigation. These eligible expenses will be included in the request for 
reimbursement after the project is complete. Front Street will not have streetscape 
improvements as the existing right-of-way is too narrow. 

 



Page 2 
 

Project Summary and Timeline: 
• Located on 15th and Front Streets (River Myrtle-Old Boise URA) 
• (8) for-rent apartments, each with 1-car garage on ground level 
• $1.6 million Total Development Costs  
• January 9, 2017 – DR Approval  
• June 2017 - Construction Start 
• June 2017 - Type 1 Agreement Finalize/Execute 
• December 2017 - Construction Complete 
• Early 2018 - Developer submits costs for reimbursement 

Fiscal Notes: 
Preliminary information shows that the project has eligible costs which exceed $150,000, but 
project will only request $150,000 as determined in the Type 1 Participation Program. The 
project meets all program requirements, and FY 2017 budget resources have been approved for 
this use. This will be the second of the two Type 1 Streetscape Grants contemplated in the 5 
Year CIP for FY ’17 in the River Myrtle-Old Boise URD. 

Preliminary estimates indicate the project will generate approximately $16,500 annually in 
increment revenue after completion, estimated to begin FY 2019, for a total of about $115,500 
through the end of the district in 2025. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution 1501 approving and authorizing the execution of the Type 1 Streetscape 
Grant Participation Agreement with Envision 360, Inc.  

 
Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution 1501 approving and authorizing the execution of the Type 1 
Streetscape Grant Participation Agreement with Envision 360, Inc.  
 

 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 1501- 1  

RESOLUTION NO.  1501 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE TYPE 1 PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND ENVISION 360, INC.; 
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN, OR 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND 
ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”);   
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency, a public body, corporate and politic, is an urban renewal 
agency created by and existing under the authority of and pursuant to the Idaho Urban Renewal 
Law of 1965, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 20, and the Local Economic Development 
Act, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 29, as amended and supplemented for the purpose of 
financing the undertaking of any urban renewal project (collectively the "Act"); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Boise, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly published, conducted a 
public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”);   
 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on 
December 6, 1994, approving the River Street Plan and making certain findings;   
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); 

 
WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 

November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; 
 

WHEREAS, Envision 360, Inc. (“Envision”), owns or controls certain real property at 
1420 W. Front Street, Boise (the “Site”) located in the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal 
District (“River Myrtle District”), as created by the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan;   

 
WHEREAS, Envision intends on building an 8 unit, apartment project and desires to 

make certain public improvements (the “Project”); 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1501- 2  

WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes the Type 1 
Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for construction of public 
improvements;  
 
 WHEREAS, attached hereto as Attachment 1, and incorporated herein as if set forth in 
full, is the Type-1 Participation Program Agreement and exhibits thereto (“Agreement”) with 
Envision whereby Envision will construct the Project and the Agency will reimburse Envision for 
constructing public improvements as specified in the Agreement;    
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency deems it appropriate to approve the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to approve 
the Agreement and to authorize the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or Executive Director to execute 
the Agreement; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS 
FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Agreement, which is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and 
incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3: That the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, or Executive Director of the Agency 
are hereby authorized to sign and enter into the Agreement and to execute all necessary 
documents required to implement the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to 
representations by the Agency staff and the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent 
to such actions have been met; and further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement 
or other documents are acceptable, upon advice from the Agency’s legal counsel that said 
changes are consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the comments and 
discussions received at the July 10, 2017, Agency Board meeting; the Agency is further 
authorized to appropriate any and all funds contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any 
and all other duties required pursuant to said Agreement. 
 
 Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval.   
 
 PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on July 10, 2017.  Signed 
by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners, on July 10, 2017.   
       

APPROVED:   
 
 
      By                                                             
             Chairman 
ATTEST: 
By                                                   
       Secretary 
 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT  

 
 THIS TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) 
is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as 
the Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho and known as the urban renewal 
agency of the City of Boise City, Idaho (“CCDC”) and Envision 360, Inc. (“Participant”).  CCDC 
and Participant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually referred to as a 
“Party.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
 A. Participant owns or controls certain real property located at 1420 W. Front Street, 
Boise, Idaho (the “Project Site”) which is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit A.  The 
Project Site is undergoing redevelopment including building an eight unit apartment building and 
associated public improvements (the “Participant’s Project”).    
 
 B. As part of the Participant’s Project, Participant intends to construct certain street 
and streetscape improvements in the public right-of way adjacent to the Project Site (the 
“Streetscape Project”).  The Streetscape Project is more accurately depicted on attached 
Exhibit B. 
 
 C. The CCDC Board of Commissioners and the Boise City Council have adopted 
the Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards & Specifications Manual (“Streetscape Standards”) 
to govern how sidewalk improvements are designed and installed in the Boise Central, River 
Myrtle-Old Boise, Westside Downtown, and 30th Street Area urban renewal districts.   
 

D. The Participant’s Project and the Streetscape Project are located in the River 
Myrtle-Old Boise (“River Myrtle District”).  The CCDC Board of Commissioners and Boise City 
Council have adopted the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan”) which 
includes streetscape standards for the River Myrtle District.   

 
E. The Streetscape Project includes improvements to the public right-of-way that 

are consistent with the Streetscape Standards and have been approved by the City of Boise 
Design Review. The Streetscape Project will contribute to enhancing and revitalizing the River 
Myrtle-Old Boise District.    
 
 F. CCDC deems it appropriate to assist the development of the Streetscape Project 
to achieve the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with CCDC’s Participation 
Program.   
  

 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 2 

AGREEMENTS 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into 
this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 
agree as follows:  
 
 1. Effective Date.  The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this Agreement shall be 
the date when this Agreement has been signed by the Participant and CCDC (last date signed) 
and shall continue until: 1.) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or 2.) twelve (12) 
months from the Effective Date, whichever comes first.  At CCDC’s sole discretion an extension 
may be granted for a period not to exceed one year.   
 
 2. Construction of the Streetscape Project.  Participant agrees to construct the 
Streetscape Project consistent with the following: 
 

a. The Streetscape Project shall be constructed in accordance with the overall City of 
Boise (“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and with the 
applicable portions of the Streetscape Standards adopted as part of the Plan. 

 
b. The Parties agree that the Streetscape Project is depicted on Exhibit B, with cost 

estimates for eligible items described in the Schedule of Eligible Streetscape and 
Infrastructure Costs in Exhibit C (“Estimated Eligible Costs”).  Any other public 
improvements that are constructed by the Participant as part of the Participant’s 
Project are not eligible for reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement.  Additionally, 
CCDC’s reimbursement obligation is limited to the amount set forth in Section 6 of 
this Agreement. 

 
 3. Initial Construction Funding.  Participant shall pay for all of the costs of 
construction for the Streetscape Project.  CCDC acknowledges that the Schedule of Eligible 
Streetscape and Infrastructure Costs attached as Exhibit C is an estimate by Contractor and 
that actual costs for the Streetscape Project, as well as each line item of cost, may be more or 
less than is shown. 

 
4. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of construction, 

Participant shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction inspection and/or a 
meeting with CCDC to determine if the Streetscape Project meets the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CCDC shall provide Participant with written confirmation that the Streetscape 
Project has been completed in compliance with this Agreement.  

  
a. At CCDC’s sole discretion, CCDC may require proof of completion, such as a 

Certificate of Occupancy, before providing written confirmation of compliance.   
 

5. Determining Actual Payment after Completion of Construction.  Participant 
shall provide appropriate documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that Participant has 
expended funds for eligible costs in order to receive payment under the terms of this 
Agreement. Any Cost Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of Participant’s 
notification to CCDC that construction of the Streetscape Project is complete and shall include: 

 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 3 

a. Schedule of values that includes line items for the Streetscape Project 
improvements approved by CCDC for reimbursement so they are identifiable and 
separate from other line items (“Schedule of Values”). 

 
b. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and material 

suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, 
historic street lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed 
materials and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for 
the Streetscape Project in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of 
Participant’s project (“Invoices”). 

 
c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates in 

Exhibit C and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested by CCDC. 
 
d. A notarized affidavit by Participant that all materials have been paid for, that all 

subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on the work performed, and that 
the Cost Documentation is complete whereupon payment by CCDC shall constitute 
full accord and satisfaction of all the Agreement obligations. 

 
e. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested by 

CCDC.  
 
f.  The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for eligible 

public improvements within the public right-of-way. 
 
CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent 

verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs, and the total costs for eligible 
costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by 
Participant to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Participant fails to timely deliver the Cost 
Documentation, CCDC may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under 
this Agreement by providing Participant with written notice of such default.  Participant shall 
have thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default.  In the event Participant fails to 
cure such a default, CCDC’s payment obligations under this Agreement may be terminated in 
CCDC’s sole discretion. 
 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC 
will notify Participant in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation 
and CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs to be reimbursed.  CCDC shall, in its 
discretion, determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the Cost Documentation, 
verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses contained in such 
Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost Documentation to the 
amounts in Exhibit C.  IN NO EVENT SHALL THE TOTAL FOR THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS EXCEED THE AMOUNT ALLOWED BY SECTION 6.    

 
If Participant disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Participant 

must respond to CCDC in writing within three (3) business days explaining why Participant 
believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such 
contentions Participant wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall respond to Participant within 
three (3) business days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying 
Participant CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that point, the determination of 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 4 

the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.  CCDC’S DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE 
COSTS IS WITHIN ITS SOLE DISCRETION. 
 

6. CCDC’s Reimbursement Payment Amount.  In accordance with the 
Participation Program, CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant 100% of Actual Eligible Costs not 
to exceed $150,000.  Actual Eligible Costs do not include soft costs (e.g., architectural and 
engineering design, permits, traffic control, mobilization, and overhead).   

 
7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Payment Obligation.  CCDC agrees to 

reimburse Participant in the amount as determined in compliance with Sections 2.c., 5 and 6  no 
later than thirty (30) days after completion of all of the following: 

 
a. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Participant that the Streetscape Project 

has been constructed in compliance with this Agreement.  CCDC may require 
proof of completion at CCDCs sole discretion. 

 
b. CCDC receives Cost Documentation as described in Section 5 in a format 

acceptable to CCDC. 
 

Participant’s failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for 
termination of CCDC’s reimbursement obligation. 

 
8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this 

Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in any CCDC revenues for the 
River Myrtle Plan Area or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not limited to 
revenue from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the Idaho 
Code) or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
in this Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the payments as specified in this Agreement 
shall be subordinate to all CCDC obligations that have committed or in the future commit 
available CCDC revenues, including but not limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation 
Area or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages, and may be subject to consent and 
approval by CCDC lenders. 

 
9.  Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 

except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days [ten (10) days] in the event of failure to pay 
money] from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which 
such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement unless such Party, prior to 
expiration of said 45-day period [ten (10) days] in the event of failure to pay money], has 
rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the event of a default, the 
nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

 
a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the 

defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages incurred 
by the nondefaulting Party. 

 
b. The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of this 

Agreement which can be specifically performed and recover all damages incurred 
by the nondefaulting Party.  The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of 
this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are not adequate 
legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 

 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 5 

c. The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance 
necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise 
due the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party. 

 
d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it being 

the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally enforced so as to 
adequately and completely compensate the nondefaulting Party. 

 
e. In the event Participant defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the nondefaulting 

Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment under this 
Agreement, as more specifically defined in this Agreement, for so long as the 
default continues and if not cured, CCDC’s obligation for payment shall be deemed 
extinguished.  In addition, if CCDC funds shall have been paid, Participant shall 
reimburse CCDC for any such funds Participant received. 

 
 10. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are for 
reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the terms, 
covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 
 
 11. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  CCDC and Participant agree that nothing 
contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement 
shall be construed as making CCDC and Participant a joint venture or partners. 
 
 12. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except that 
the Participant may assign Participant’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third 
party only with the written approval of CCDC, at CCDC’s sole discretion which cannot be 
reasonably denied. 
 
 13. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States 
express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express) with 
postage or delivery charges prepaid and return receipt requested, or by electronic mail (e-mail) 
addressed to the appropriate Party at the address set forth below: 
 
If to Participant: Chad Olsen, Partner 
   Envision 360, Inc. 

12790 W Telemark Street 
Boise, Idaho 83713 
208-921-5252  
chadrbx@gmail.com  

 
If to CCDC:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
   121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
   Boise, Idaho  83702 
   208-384-4264 

jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com         
  
 14. Applicable Law/Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be brought 
by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this 

mailto:chadrbx@gmail.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 6 

Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and 
such other costs as may be found by the court. 
 
 15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the Parties.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 
  Exhibit A Project Site Map 
  Exhibit B Streetscape Project Plan 
  Exhibit C Schedule of Eligible Costs  
  

  16. Indemnification.  Participant shall indemnify and hold CCDC and its officers, 
agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, 
penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney 
fees (collectively referred to in this section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred 
by or asserted against CCDC or its respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the 
construction or design of the Streetscape Project or otherwise arising out of Participant’s actions 
or inactions.  In the event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective 
officers, agents, and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice 
from CCDC shall, at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Participant shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold 
CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter 
to the extent it arises from the active negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, or employees.  

 
  17. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Participant, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of improvements 
on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, the Participant will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity/expression, national origin or ancestry, marital status, age, or 
physical disability. 

 
  18. Maintenance. Participant recognizes CCDC has no specific authority to accept 

maintenance responsibility of the Streetscape Project or any improvements constructed by 
Participant and that no agreement has been reached with CCDC or City to accept any 
maintenance obligations for such improvements.  
 
 19. Promotion of Project.  Participant agrees CCDC may promote the Streetscape 
Project and CCDC’s involvement with the Streetscape Project.  Such promotion includes 
reasonable signage at the Site notifying the public of CCDC’s involvement with the Streetscape 
Project. 
 
 

End of Agreement 
[Signatures appear on the following page.]  





TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 8 

Exhibit A: Project Site Map 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 9 

Exhibit B: Streetscape Project Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT AGREEMENT - 10 

Exhibit C: Schedule of Eligible Costs 
 
 

NOTE: Total reimbursement Not-to-Exceed $150,000. 



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution 1502: Approval of 11th & Myrtle – Pioneer Corner – 
Type Four Participation Agreement with BVGC Parcel B, LLC 

Date: 
July 10, 2017 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution 1502 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1502, approving the Type 4 Participation Agreement with BVGC 
Parcel B, LLC to construct Pioneer Corner improvements. 

 
Background: 

Through the Front and Myrtle Alternatives Analysis, CCDC staff and agency partners 
identified a number of near term improvements along the Front and Myrtle corridor that 
could be accomplished either as part of or concurrently with the ITD resurfacing project 
on Front, Myrtle, and Broadway scheduled to occur in the summer of 2017.  
 
One of the more notable near term improvements identified was an improved 
connection between the existing Pioneer Pathway and the intersection of 11th and 
Myrtle Streets. This improved connection was proposed to include a realigned 
crosswalk on Myrtle Street and directional pedestrian ramps at the corner (to be done 
as part of the ITD resurfacing), and the widening of the pathway paver section on the 
southwest corner of Myrtle and 11th Streets to better accommodate both bicyclists and 
pedestrians transitioning to and from the main pathway. Subsequent discussions with 
Boise City staff, CCDC staff, and the adjacent property owner yielded consensus on an 
improvement that also included additional trees, benches, and a waste receptacle. 
 
The City has issued a zoning certificate for the project and The Land Group is finalizing 
the project design and specifications. CCDC would normally bid the project out for 
construction once the project manual is finalized. However, BVGC Parcel B LLC, the 
developer of Pioneer Crossing just across Myrtle from the project site, has agreed to 
complete the improvements as part of its construction efforts under a Type 4 
participation agreement, subject to a finalized agreement and exhibits. The developer 
anticipates being able to complete the work in late summer/early fall 2017 under a 



Page 2 
 

participation agreement with CCDC. This would allow CCDC to accomplish the 
improvements at roughly the same time as if it was bid out separately, potentially with 
some savings due to economy of scale, and with less administrative burden. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 

The project is estimated to include eligible costs not to exceed $100,000. The 2017-
2021 mid-year CIP adopted by the CCDC Board of Commissioners in March 2017 
included $125,000 for Front and Myrtle near-term improvements. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

Adopt Resolution No. 1502, approving the Type 4 Participation Agreement with BVGC 
Parcel B, LLC to construct Pioneer Corner improvements. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1502, approving the Type 4 Participation Agreement 
with BVGC Parcel B, LLC to construct Pioneer Corner improvements. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1502 - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1502 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
THE CITY OF BOISE, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO, APPROVING THE TYPE 4 PARTICIPATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND BVGC 
PARCEL B, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS SUBJECT 
TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY 
TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban 
Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and 
politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as 
amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, 
as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the 
“Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after 
notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street 
Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”), and following said public hearing the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 1994, approving the River Street Plan 
and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 
the First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban 
Renewal Project (annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor 
Parcels) and Renamed River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River 
Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 
6362 on November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making 
certain findings; and, 
  

WHEREAS, the Agency staff is working in collaboration with representatives from 
the Ada County Highway District, the City of Boise, the Community Planning 
Association of Southwest Idaho, and the Idaho Transportation Department on the “Front 
and Myrtle Street Alternatives Analysis Project” (the Study); and, 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1502 - 2 

WHEREAS, the Agency has funds programmed in its 2017-2021 Mid-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan for Front & Myrtle Quick Wins as determined by the Study; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Study identified improvements to the Pioneer Pathway at the 

southwest corner of 11th and Myrtle Streets (the “Project”) as a Quick Win/near term 
improvement; and, 

 
WHEREAS, BVGC Parcel B, LLC is currently developing a project called Pioneer 

Crossing on the property known as Parcel B in the vicinity of the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes T-4 

Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for construction of 
public improvements contained in the Agency’s Capital Improvement Program; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Agency staff and BVGC Parcel B, LLC desire to negotiate and 

execute a Type-4 Participation Program Agreement (“Agreement”), a preliminary draft of 
which is attached hereto as Attachment 1, whereby BVGC Parcel B LLC will construct 
the Project and the Agency will reimburse BVGC Parcel B LLC for constructing public 
improvements as specified in the Agreement; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Agency deems it appropriate to proceed with negotiations for the 

Agreement and execute it with BVGC Parcel B, LLC once finalized with agreement 
language, plan set, and schedule of values (not to exceed $100,000); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best public interest to authorize the 

Executive Director to execute the Agreement for construction of the Project once 
negotiations are finalized by the parties. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 

Section 2:  That the Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 in its draft form and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same is 
hereby approved. 

 
Section 3:  That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to 

sign and enter into the Agreement to execute all necessary documents required to 
implement the actions contemplated by the Agreement once finalized with agreement 
language, plan set, and schedule of values, subject to representations by the Agency 
staff and Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to actions have been met; 
and further, any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or other documents are 
acceptable upon advice from the Agency's legal counsel that said changes are 



RESOLUTION NO. 1502 - 3 

consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the comments and discussions 
received at the July 10, 2017, Agency Board meeting; and further, the Agency is 
authorized to appropriate any and all funds contemplated by the Agreement and to 
perform any and all other duties required pursuant to said Agreement. 

 
Section 4:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 

upon its adoption and approval. 
 
PASSED By the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on July 10, 2017. 

Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary 
to the Board of Commissioners on July 10, 2017. 

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   

 
 
     By:         
           John Hale, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      Ryan Woodings, Secretary 

 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 

THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

AND 
 

BVGC PARCEL B, LLC, AN IDAHO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 
 
 

PIONEER CORNER PROJECT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 2 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  
 

 THIS TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of 
Boise, also known as the Capital City Development Corporation, a public body, 
corporate and politic, of the State of Idaho (“CCDC”), and BVGC Parcel B, LLC, an 
Idaho limited liability company (“Developer”).  CCDC and Developer may be collectively 
referred to as the “Parties” and individually referred to as a “Party.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
 A. CCDC is an urban renewal agency created by and existing pursuant to the 
Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 20, and the 
Local Economic Project Act, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 29, as amended and 
supplemented (collectively the "Act").   
 
 B. BVGC Parcel B, LLC (the “Developer”) owns or controls certain real 
property, more commonly known as Parcel B, located at 1150 W. Myrtle Street, Boise, 
ID 83702. Parcel B is undergoing redevelopment as a project called Pioneer Crossing 
(the “Developer’s Project”), which is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit A. 
 
 C. Based on early findings from the Front and Myrtle Alternatives Analysis, 
CCDC has developed plans to expand the Pioneer Pathway in a public easement at the 
southwest corner of 11th and Myrtle Streets (the “Pioneer Corner Project”), in the 
immediate vicinity of the Developer’s Project. The Pioneer Corner Project is more 
accurately depicted in Exhibit B, and the Developer agrees to construct these 
improvements as part of the Developer’s Project and in accordance with the plans 
provided by CCDC. 
 

D. The Developer’s Project and the Pioneer Corner Project are located in the 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal District (“RM District”), as created by the River 
Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan, as subsequently amended (the “Plan”).  The 
Pioneer Corner Project includes improvements to the public right-of-way or within a 
public easement that are consistent with the Pioneer Corridor Design Standards.  The 
Project will contribute to enhancing and revitalizing the RM District.    
 
 E. If Developer constructs the Pioneer Corner Project, CCDC deems it 
appropriate to reimburse Developer for certain eligible public improvements as detailed 
in this Agreement to achieve the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with 
CCDC’s Participation Program and upon execution of this Agreement shall set aside 
sufficient funds to meet its obligations under this Agreement.   
  

AGREEMENTS 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are 
incorporated into this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 3 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:  
 
 1. Effective Date and Term.  The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this 
Agreement shall be the date when this Agreement has been signed by Developer and 
CCDC (last date signed) and the term of the Agreement shall continue until: (1) the 
completion of all obligations of each Party; or (2) December 31, 2017, whichever comes 
first.  Provided Developer is diligently constructing the Pioneer Corner Project and that 
the Parties have agreed to the actual total costs associated with the Pioneer Corner 
Project pursuant to Section 3 below, upon written request from Developer to CCDC, 
CCDC shall grant one extension for a period not to exceed six (6) months.   
 
 2. Construction of the Pioneer Corner Project.  As a condition to CCDC’s 
reimbursement under the terms of this Agreement, Developer shall construct the 
Pioneer Corner Project consistent with the following: 
 

a. The Pioneer Corner Project shall be constructed in accordance with 
the overall City of Boise (“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and 
design standards and with the Pioneer Corner Plan and 
specifications included in Exhibit B. 
 

b. Developer shall obtain all permits and secure all agreements 
required by City, the Ada County Highway District (“ACHD”), and 
the Idaho Transportation Department (“ITD”) to construct the 
Pioneer Corner Project. 

 
c. Developer shall schedule final construction inspection and meeting 

with CCDC to ensure that the Pioneer Corner Project is constructed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The Parties agree that the Pioneer Corner Project is depicted on Exhibit B, with 

cost details described on Exhibit C and that Exhibit C is an estimate of the work and 
materials, but excludes certain soft costs, design fees, permitting fees, and other fees 
and expenses that may in fact be incurred in the course of constructing the Pioneer 
Corner Project. The actual total costs, as well as each line item of cost for the Pioneer 
Corner Project, may be more or less than is shown on Exhibit C.  CCDC’s 
reimbursement obligation shall be limited to the final agreed upon schedule of values as 
set forth in Section 3 below.  Any other public improvements that are constructed by 
Developer as part of the Developer’s Project are not eligible for reimbursement pursuant 
to this Agreement, but are eligible for reimbursement pursuant to a separate agreement 
between the Parties.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall modifiy or amend any 
other agreement between the Parties.   

 
 3. Initial Construction Funding.  Developer shall pay for all of the costs of 
construction for the Pioneer Corner Project.  The reimbursement payment to Developer 
by CCDC shall be made pursuant to Section 7.  CCDC acknowledges that the schedule 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 4 

of values for the eligible streetscape and infrastructure costs (“Preliminary Schedule of 
Values”) attached as Exhibit C is an estimate and that actual total costs, as well as 
each line item of cost for the Pioneer Corner Project, may be more or less than is shown 
on Exhibit C.  Developer and CCDC shall work with Developer’s contractor to confirm 
the Preliminary Schedule of Values prior to the commencement of Developer’s 
construction of the Pioneer Corner Project.  Developer shall have no obligation to direct 
its contractor commence the work associated with the Pioneer Corner Project until 
CCDC and Developer have agreed in writing to the final actual total costs associated 
with the Pioneer Corner Project.   
 

4. Review of Construction Plans.  Upon CCDC’s request, CCDC shall 
have the right and the opportunity to review Developer’s construction plans, budgets, 
and bids for the eligible streetscape and infrastructure costs identified in Exhibit C 
(collectively the “Public Improvement Construction Documents”).  Developer will utilize 
commercially reasonable contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices to ensure that 
the Pioneer Corner Project is constructed consistent with the Public Improvement 
Construction Documents and are undertaken in a reasonable manner.  For purposes of 
this Section 4, Developer shall be presumed to have utilized commercially reasonable 
contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices if its general contractor solicits or solicited 
competitive bids for the Pioneer Corner Project and such work is not performed by an 
affiliate or subsidiary of Developer.   

 
5. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of 

construction, Developer shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction 
inspection and a meeting with CCDC evaluate whether Pioneer Corner Project adheres 
to the requirements of this Agreement.  Following a satisfactory inspection by CCDC, 
CCDC shall provide Developer with written confirmation that the Pioneer Corner Project 
has been completed in compliance with this Agreement.  If such inspection identifies 
issues that shall be required to be addressed, then CCDC shall provide Developer with 
written notice of such, and Developer shall have a reasonable period of time to work 
with its contractor to complete and correct such.   

  
6. Determining Actual Eligible Costs.  Developer is responsible for 

submitting invoices or receipts for work performed as part of the Pioneer Corner Project 
(the “Cost Documentation”) with any invoices delivered to CCDC.  The Cost 
Documentation shall include the following: 

 
a. An updated schedule of values that includes line items for the 

Pioneer Corner Project improvements approved by CCDC for 
reimbursement so they are identifiable separate from other line 
items (“Updated Schedule of Values”). 

 
b. Invoices from Developer’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), 

design professionals, and material suppliers for each type of 
eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, historic street 
lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 5 

materials, and a percentage estimate of how much installed 
material was used for the Pioneer Corner Project in comparison to 
the amount used for the remainder of the Developer’s Project 
(“Invoices”). 

 
c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the Preliminary 

Schedule of Values in Exhibit C, any Updated Schedule of Values 
previously submitted, and the actual costs in the most recently 
submitted Cost Documentation. 

 
d. An affidavit by Developer that all materials have been paid for, all 

subcontractors have been paid, and that no liens exist on the work 
performed. 

 
CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain 

independent verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs and the total 
costs for eligible costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost 
estimates provided by Developer to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Developer 
fails to timely deliver the Cost Documentation, CCDC may elect to terminate its payment 
obligations under this Agreement only after providing Developer with written notice of 
such default and affording Developer a period of forty-five (45) days from such written 
notice to cure the default.  If Developer fails to cure such a default, CCDC may 
terminate its payment obligations under this Agreement. 
 

Within fifteen (15) days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC will 
notify Developer in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost 
Documentation and CCDC’s determination of the “Actual Eligible Costs” to be 
reimbursed.  CCDC shall determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the 
Cost Documentation, verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and 
expenses contained in such Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the 
Cost Documentation to the amounts in the Preliminary Schedule of Values.  In no event 
will the Actual Eligible Costs exceed the amount agreed upon by the Developer 
and CCDC prior to the commencement of the Pioneer Corner Project pursuant to 
Section 3 above. 

 
If Developer disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, 

Developer must respond to CCDC in writing within five (5) days explaining why 
Developer believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to 
support any such contentions Developer wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall 
respond to Developer within three (3) days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible 
Costs or notify Developer CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that 
point, the determination of the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.   

 
CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs is within its discretion, 

to be exercised in a commercially reasonable manner.  Provided, any dispute over 
the Actual Eligible Costs is subject to Section 22, herein. 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 6 

 
7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Reimbursement Obligation.  CCDC 

agrees to reimburse Developer in the amount as determined in compliance with 
Paragraphs 5 and 6 as follows: 

 
a. City issues a Certificate of Occupancy or Temporary Certificate of 

Occupancy for the Project. 
 

b. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Developer that the Pioneer 
Corner Project has been constructed in compliance with this 
Agreement.  CCDC may require proof of completion at CCDCs sole 
discretion. 

 
Failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for termination of 

CCDC’s reimbursement obligation. 
 
8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this 

Agreement does not provide Developer with a security interest in any CCDC revenues 
for the River Myrtle District or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not 
limited to revenue from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 
29 of the Idaho Code) or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the 
payments as specified in this Agreement shall be subordinate to all CCDC obligations 
that have committed or in the future commit available CCDC revenues, including but not 
limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation Area or any revenue from CCDC’s 
parking garages, and may be subject to consent and approval by CCDC lenders; 
provided, however, that CCDC (a) shall not grant any other person or entity a security 
interest in CCDC’s tax increment revenues for the River Myrtle District, except as may 
be related to loans, issuance of credit, or the issuance of bonds related to the 
maintenance, operation, or purchase of parking facilities or any other urban renewal 
project; (b) except as permitted in the previous clause, shall not enter into any 
agreement committing the tax increment generated from or relating to the Pioneer 
Corner Project to any other person or entity; and (c) shall not, without prior notice to 
Developer, modify the Plan in such a way as would (i) adversely affect the 
implementation of the Plan, (ii) adversely affect the ability of CCDC to obtain revenue 
anticipated under the Plan, or (iii) result in the resetting of the base value of the 
properties that are subject to the Plan.  Upon reasonable request from the Developer, 
CCDC will provide updates on the availability of funds for the CCDC Reimbursement 
and the most recently adopted annual budget for the River Myrtle District.. 

 
9.  Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 

except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days (ten [10] days in the event of failure to 
pay money) from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars 
in which such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement; unless 
such Party, prior to expiration of said 45-day period (ten [10] days in the event of failure 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 7 

to pay money), has rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the 
event of a default, the nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

 
a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written 

notice to the defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party 
all direct damages incurred by the nondefaulting Party. 

 
b. The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those 

elements of this Agreement which can be specifically performed, in 
addition, recover all damages incurred by the nondefaulting Party.  
The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of this 
Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are 
not adequate legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 

 
c. The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or 

encumbrance necessary to cure the default and offset the cost 
thereof from monies otherwise due the defaulting Party or recover 
said monies from the defaulting Party. 

 
d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at 

law, it being the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative 
and liberally enforced so as to adequately and completely 
compensate the nondefaulting Party. 

 
e. In the event Developer defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the 

nondefaulting Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its 
payment under this Agreement, as more specifically defined in this 
Agreement, for so long as the default continues and if not cured 
prior to the end of the term of the Agreement as set forth in Section 
1, CCDC’s obligation for payment may be deemed extinguished by 
CCDC.   

 
 10. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement 
are for reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of 
any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 
 
 11. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  CCDC and Developer agree that 
nothing contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with 
this Agreement shall be construed as making CCDC and Developer a joint venture or 
partners. 
 
 12. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except 
that the Developer may assign Developer’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to 
a third party only with the written approval of CCDC, which approval may be granted or 
denied in CCDC’s sole discretion.   
 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 8 

 13. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be in writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United 
States express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal 
Express), postage or delivery charge prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to 
the appropriate Party at the address set forth below: 
 
If to Developer: BVGC Parcel B, LLC 

Attn: J. Thomas Ahlquist 
101 S. Capitol Blvd., Suite 1700 
Boise, Idaho 83702 

 
If to CCDC:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 
   121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
   Boise, Idaho  83702 
       
 The person and address to which notices are to be given may be changed at any 
time by any Party upon written notice to the other Party.  All notices given pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be deemed given upon receipt.  For the purpose of this 
Agreement, the term “receipt” shall mean the earlier of any of the following: 
 

a. date of delivery of the notice or other document to the address 
specified above as shown on the return receipt; 
 

b. date of actual receipt of the notice or other document by the person 
or entity specified above; or 
 

c. in the case of refusal to accept delivery or inability to deliver the 
notice or other document, the earlier of: 
 
(i) date of the attempted delivery or refusal to accept delivery, 

 
(ii) date of the postmark on the return receipt, or 

 
(iii) date of receipt of notice of refusal or notice of non-delivery 

by the sending Party. 
 
 14. Applicable Law/Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be 
brought by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision 
of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, 
court costs, and such other costs as may be found by the court. 
 
 15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding 
and agreement of the Parties.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 9 

Exhibit A Developer’s Project Site Map 
Exhibit B Pioneer Corner Project Plan 
Exhibit C Preliminary Schedule of Values 

    
 16. Indemnification.  Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold CCDC and 
its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, 
obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including 
reasonable architect and attorney fees (collectively referred to in this section as 
“Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred by or asserted against CCDC or its 
respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the construction or design of the 
Pioneer Corner Project.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall have no 
obligation to indemnify and hold CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and 
employees harmless from and against any matter to the extent it arises from the active 
negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, agents, or employees.  In the 
event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, and employees by reason of any such claim, Developer, upon written notice 
from CCDC, shall, at Developer’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  
Developer’s obligation under this Section 16 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

17. Insurance Requirements.  Developer shall, or through its contractor, 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, at its sole cost, obtain and 
maintain in force for the duration of the construction of the improvements to the Project 
Site as part of the Developer’s Project, insurance of the following types, with limits not 
less than those set forth below and in a form acceptable to CCDC, against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from, or in connection with, 
the performance of the services hereunder by Developer, its agents,  representatives, 
employees, or subcontractors:   

 
 a. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a minimum combined 

single limit liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage; with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 each person for personal and 
advertising injury liability.  Such policy shall have a general aggregate limit of not less 
than $2,000,000, which general aggregate limit will be provided on a per project basis.  
The policy shall be endorsed to name CCDC and City as additional insureds.   

 
 b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including occupational illness or 

disease coverage, in accordance with the laws of the nation, state, territory, or province 
having jurisdiction over Developer’s employees, and Employer’s Liability Insurance.  
Developer shall not utilize occupational accident or health insurance policies, or the 
equivalent, in lieu of mandatory Workers’ Compensation Insurance or otherwise attempt 
to opt out of the statutory Workers’ Compensation system.   

 
c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering use of all owned, non-

owned, and hired automobiles with a minimum combined single limit of liability for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.  This policy shall be 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 10 

endorsed to name CCDC, including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, 
as additional insureds.   

 
 d. All insurance provided by Developer under this Agreement shall 

include a waiver of subrogation by the insurers in favor of CCDC.  Developer hereby 
releases CCDC, including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, for losses 
or claims for bodily injury, property damage covered by Developer’s insurance or other 
insured claims arising out of Developer’s performance under this Agreement or 
construction of the Project.   

 
 e. Certificates of insurance satisfactory in form to CCDC (ACORD 

form or equivalent) shall be supplied to CCDC evidencing that the insurance required 
above is in force, that, to the extent commercially reasonable, not less than thirty (30) 
days’ written notice will be given to CCDC prior to any cancellation or restrictive 
modification of the policies, and that the waivers of subrogation are in force.  Developer 
shall also provide, with its certificate of insurance, executed copies of the additional 
insured endorsements and dedicated limits endorsements required in this Agreement.  
At CCDC’s request, Developer shall provide a certified copy of each insurance policy 
required under this Agreement.   

 
 f. The foregoing insurance coverage shall be primary and 

noncontributing with respect to any other insurance or self-insurance that may be 
maintained by CCDC.  The fact that Developer has obtained the insurance required in 
this Section shall in no manner lessen or affect Developer’s other obligations or 
liabilities set forth in this Agreement.   

 
18. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Developer, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of 
improvements on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, Developer will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, national origin or 
ancestry, age, or handicap. 
 
 19. Maintenance.  Developer acknowledges and agrees CCDC has no 
obligations to maintain the improvements constructed as part of the Pioneer Corner 
Project or any other maintenance obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 20. Promotion of Project.  Developer agrees CCDC may promote the 
Pioneer Corner Project and CCDC’s involvement with the Pioneer Corner Project.  Such 
promotion includes reasonable signage at the Project Site notifying the public of 
CCDC’s involvement with the Pioneer Corner Project. 
 
 21. Warranty.  Developer warrants that the materials and workmanship 
employed in the construction of the Pioneer Corner Project are of good quality and 
conform to generally accepted standards within the construction industry.  Such 
warranty shall extend for a period of two (2) years after completion of the Pioneer 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 11 

Corner Project, being the date CCDC acknowledged the completion of the Pioneer 
Corner Project.  Provided, nothing herein shall limit the time within which CCDC may 
bring an action against Developer on account of Developer’s failure to otherwise 
construct such improvements in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
 22. Dispute Resolution.  In the event that a dispute arises between CCDC 
and Developer regarding the application or interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, the aggrieved Party shall promptly notify the other Party to this Agreement 
of the dispute within ten (10) days after such dispute arises.  If the Parties shall have 
failed to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days after delivery of such notice, the 
Parties agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable manner by mediation 
or other process of structured negotiation under the auspices of a nationally or 
regionally recognized organization providing such services in the Northwestern States 
or otherwise, as the Parties may mutually agree before resorting to litigation.  Should 
the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within thirty (30) 
days after such completion of mediation or other process of structured negotiation, each 
Party shall have the right to pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law or in 
equity. 
 
 23. Entire Agreement, Waivers.  This Agreement, including Exhibits A 
through C, inclusive, incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire 
understanding and agreement of the Parties, subject to their final confirmation of the 
budget for the Pioneer Corner Project, which they shall confirm and document pursuant 
to Section 3 above.  This Agreement integrates all of the terms and conditions 
mentioned herein or incidental hereto and supersedes all negotiations or previous 
agreements between the Parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter 
thereof.  All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by 
the appropriate authorities of CCDC and Developer. 
 
 24. Amendments to this Agreement.  CCDC and Developer agree to 
mutually consider reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement and any 
attachments hereto which may be made by any of the Parties hereto, lending 
institutions, bond counsel, financial consultants, or underwriters to CCDC, provided said 
requests are consistent with this Agreement and would not alter the basic business 
purposes included herein or therein.  Any such amendments shall be in writing and 
agreed to by the Parties. 
 

25. Severability.  If any provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be 
held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other 
provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if 
such illegal or invalid provisions had not been contained herein. 

 
26. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in 

several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.   

 



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 12 

27. Forced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance.  In addition to the 
specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by any Party hereunder shall not be 
deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war; insurrection; strikes; 
lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts of God; acts of the public 
enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; lack of transportation; 
lack of materials or labor at commercially reasonable prices or in commercially 
reasonable quantities; governmental restrictions or priority; litigation; unusually severe 
weather; acts of another party; environmental analysis, or removal of hazardous or toxic 
substances; acts or the failure to act of any public or governmental agency or entity 
(except that acts or the failure to act of CCDC shall not excuse performance by CCDC); 
or any other causes beyond the control or without the fault of the Party claiming an 
extension of time to perform.  An extension of time for any such cause shall only be for 
the period of the forced delay, which period shall commence to run from the time of the 
commencement of the cause, if notice is delivered by the Party claiming such extension 
no later than forty-five (45) days after the commencement of the cause.  If, however, 
notice by the Party claiming such extension is sent to the other Party more than forty-
five (45) days after the commencement of the cause, the period shall commence to run 
only forty-five (45) days prior to the giving of such notice.  Times of performance under 
this Agreement may also be extended in writing by CCDC and Developer. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Agreement the day 
and year below written. 
 
CCDC: CCDC: Urban Renewal Agency of the City of 

Boise, a public body, corporate and politic 
 
 
 By        
 John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
 Date:        
 
 
 
DEVELOPER: BVGC PARCEL B, LLC 
 an Idaho limited liability company 
 by its Operations Manager 
 
 KC Gardner Company, L.C., a Utah limited 

liability company 
 
 By: _______________________________ 

 Christian K. Gardner 
 Its: Manager 
 
 Date: ______________________________  



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 13 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Developer’s Project Site 
 
 
  



ऑऑ
ฌ

ऑऑ
ฌ

ऑ
ऑฌ

ऑऑ
ฌ

⇡ ֭кฌ

⇡֭кฌ

⇡֭к

⇡ ֭кฌ

⇡⑾ ਙฌ ⇡ ⑾ਙ ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡ ⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡ ⑾
ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡֭
кฌ

⇡
֭
кฌ

⇡
к֭

⇡
֭
кฌ

⇡
к֭ฌ

⇡ ֭
кฌ

⇡֭к⇡֭к⇡֭кฌ⇡к֭ฌ⇡֭кฌ⇡֭к⇡к֭⇡֭к⇡֭кฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡ ⑾
ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾
ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙ

⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ
⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ

⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡ ⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7 ⇡ ֭к ⇡ ֭кฌ ⇡ ֭кฌ

⇡֭
кฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡ ⑾ਙ ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡ ⑾ਙ ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡ ⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7 ⇡ ֭к ⇡֭кฌ ⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7

ฌففฌفف

ف
7

ف
7

ف
ف
7

ف
7

ف
7

ف
7

ف
7

ف
ฌ

ف
ฌ

ف
ف
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯

ฎ
ƥƥ7⎯
⎯

ฎ ƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯

ฎƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯ฌ

ฎ ƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯
7

ฎ
ƥ ƥ 7
⎯
⎯
7

ฎ
ƥƥ 7
⎯
⎯
7

ฎ
ƥ ƥ7
⎯
⎯
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯ฌ

ں
ธ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦں
ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں

ㄦں
ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ںㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7 ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں

ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7 ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡ฌںฎƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ธㅡ
ƥƥ7⎯₡

ธㅡ
ƥƥ7⎯₡

ฌ

ں
ㄦ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ธں ƥƥ7⎯₡

ธƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ㄦں ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦں
ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦں

ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں

ں
ธƥƥ7⎯

₡

ธں
ƥƥ7⎯₡

ฌ

ธں
ƥƥ7⎯₡ฌ

ں ธƥƥ7⎯₡ฌ

⎯₡

₡⎯ฎƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ฎƥƥ7ں

ฎƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ں
ธ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ں
ธ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7 7ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ธں ƥƥ7⎯₡

ں ธƥƥ7⎯₡

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ں ธƥƥ7⎯₡

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ธƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ں
ㄦ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธں
ƥƥ7ʉ7 ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں

ธں
ƥƥ7ʉ7 ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ںธƥƥں ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7 ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں

ʉ
ฌ

ʉฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ
ฌ

ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉฌ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉฌ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉฌ

ԱǲՁ7 ԱǲՁฌ ԱǲՁ ԱǲՁฌ

Ա
ǲ
Ձ
ฌ

╗7
b╗ฌ

ḚǲЌฌ

Ա
ǲ
Ձ
ฌ

Ա
ǲ Ձ
ฌ

Ա
ǲ
Ձ
ฌ

ں ｘƥƥ7ƆＣ7

ｘƥƥ7ƆＣฌں

Ɔ Ｃฌ

ƆＣฌ

ƆＣฌ

ฎƥƥ7ƆƆฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
Ɔ
Ɔ
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
Û

ฎƥƥ7Ûฌ ฎƥƥ7Û7 ฎƥƥ7Û7 ฎƥƥ7Û7 ฎƥƥ7Ûฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
Û
ฌ

ㅡ
ƥƥ7
Û
ฌ

″
ฌ ƥƥ7
Û
ฌ

●Ő
Ő
ฌ

ｘ7 ̶ｘ7 ″ｘฌںㄦ7

$Ⓢ╗ⓈŐǲ7

$Ⓢ╗ⓈŐǲฌ

ОAŐì●ЌḚ7ḚAŐAḚǲฌ
Ḷ$$●bǲ7

Őǲ╗A●Ձฌ

ҜùŐ╗Ձǲ7Ɔ╗Őǲǲ╗7

$ŐḶЌ╗7Ɔ╗Őǲǲ╗ฌ

ں
ں
γש
7Ɔ
╗
Ő
ǲ
ǲ
╗
ฌ

ں
̶
γש
7Ɔ
╗
Ő
ǲ
ǲ
╗
ฌ

ں
ธ
γש
7Ɔ
╗
Ő
ǲ
ǲ
╗

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

●Ќ$●Ձ╗ŐA╗●ḶЌ7╗ŐǲЌbĠ7

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜ7

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ＣḶҜǲƆ╗●b7ÛA╗ǲŐ7bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌฌ

ＣḶҜǲƆ╗●b7ÛA╗ǲŐ7bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌฌ

ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐ7bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ҜAЌĠḶՁǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7╗ŐAОฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆAЌＣ7ִ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7╗ŐAО7ӧ╗ùОỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐฌ

bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌ7╗Ḷ7ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ҜAЌĠḶՁǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

╗ŐAƆĠ7ǲЌbՁḶƆⓈŐǲฌ

ธㅡƥฌ
$●Őǲฌ

AbbǲƆƆฌ

ธںƥ7$●Őǲ7AbbǲƆƆฌ

ธںƥฌ
$●Őǲฌ

AbbǲƆƆฌ

̶ｘƥฌ

$●Őǲ7AbbǲƆƆฌ

ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7●Ќ$●Ձ╗ŐA╗●ḶЌ7╗ŐǲЌbĠỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7●Ќ$●Ձ╗ŐA╗●ḶЌ7╗ŐǲЌbĠỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣ7ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜỏ

$Ⓢ╗ⓈŐǲ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣ7ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ִ7ƆAЌＣ7ִ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7╗ŐAОฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣ7ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7●ŐŐ●ḚA╗●ḶЌ7Ҝǲ╗ǲŐฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7●ŐŐ●ḚA╗●ḶЌ7Ձ●Ќǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗7

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗7

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7●ŐŐ●ḚA╗●ḶЌ7Ҝǲ╗ǲŐ7

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḚǲЌǲŐA╗ḶŐฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ＣḶҜǲƆ╗●b7ÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆǲŐЋ●bǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7$●Őǲ7ÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆǲŐЋ●bǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐ7ƆǲŐЋ●bǲฌ

ӧִ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7●Ќ╗ǲŐbǲО╗ḶŐỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

ǲՁǲb╗Ő●bAՁฌ

╗ŐAЌƆ$ḶŐҜǲŐฌОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ǲՁǲb╗Ő●bAՁ7Ҝǲ╗ǲŐฌ

ธｘｘｘ7ḚAՁՁḶЌฌ

ḚŐǲAƆǲ7●Ќ╗ǲŐbǲО╗ḶŐฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

╗ŐAƆĠ7ǲЌbՁḶƆⓈŐǲ7

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗7 ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

″�������	
ӧ777 ������ฌ


	�������ں̬77777�����

ں
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

ӧ

77
7
�
�
	
��
�
�ฌ

″
�
�
�
�
�
��


̬

77
7
�
�
�
��
�
�ฌ

″	�������
ӧฌ

ธں㈠ｘฎƥฌ

″������	�
̬ฌ

ธں㈠̶ɱƥฌ

″�	������
̬ฌ

ㅡƥฌںㅡ㈠ں

Ձएธㄦㅡ㈠″ՙƥฌ
Őएںｘฎｘ㈠ｘｘƥฌ

ִ੧ں����	����
̬ฌ

bＣएธㄦㅡ㈠ｘฎƥฌ
ӕ�����	���
ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛ7

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛฌ

ɱƥฌ
ӧ╗ùОỏฌ

ธｘƥ7

ธㅡƥฌ

ธ̶ƥฌ

ธㅡ㈠ㄦƥฌ

ธㄦƥฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

ǲՁǲb╗Ő●bAՁฌ

╗ŐAЌƆ$ḶŐҜǲŐฌ

Exhibit A: Developer Site Plan

DRAFT

medmond
Polygon




TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 14 

Exhibit B 

Pioneer Corner Project 



RD

IV

IV

IV

IV

IV

IV IV

WV

CO
CO

IV
S

E

S

IV

GMTR

IV

RD

CO

CO

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UG
P

G
G

G

2692

2692

2692

26
92

26
93

26
92

26
92

2692

2693

2694

2693

2692

26
92 26
93

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/
W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/
W

BOL

BOL

4

3

76

6

5

5

6

2

1

8

SIDEWALK

9

3

12

5

5

11

BEGIN

1 BEGIN

2 END

6

14

8

9

10

14

13

15

15

(2)BN
(22)BC

19
'

END

3.
00

'

66.90'

Sheet Notes:

Keynotes:

A. CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT ALL CONDITIONS WHICH
IMPAIR AND/OR PREVENT THE PROPER EXECUTION OF THIS WORK, PRIOR TO BEGINNING
WORK.

B. CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE A PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE WITH LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT.

C. CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR ALL LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION AREAS DISTURBED OR
DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS.

D. IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY, NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.
E. CONTRACTOR SHALL, AT ALL TIMES, PROTECT STORM DRAIN FACILITIES, FROM

CONTAMINATION.  DO NOT PILE MATERIALS ON OR NEAR STORM DRAIN FACILITIES.
F. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ADA ACCESSIBILITY GUIDELINES, WITHIN THE

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT AS REQUIRED.

1. REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE CURBING IN THIS APPROXIMATE AREA.
2. NEW 6" CONCRETE CONTAINMENT CURBING.
3. REMOVE EXISTING LANDSCAPE/IRRIGATION COMPONENTS IN THIS APPROXIMATE

AREA; CUT AND CAP AS NEEDED.
4. EXISTING SIGN TO BE PRESERVED AND PROTECTED.
5. EXISTING TREE TO BE PRESERVED AND PROTECTED, REFERENCE TREE PROTECTION

NOTES ON THIS SHEET.
6. EXISTING LANDSCAPE TO BE PRESERVED AND PROTECTED. ENSURE THAT ALL

IRRIGATION LOCATED IN PRESERVED LANDSCAPE AREAS IS FULLY FUNCTIONAL
DURING CONSTRUCTION.

7. EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED - REMOVE STUMP AND ROOTS, IF UNABLE, GRIND
STUMP 24" BELOW GRADE.

8. EXISTING BRICK PAVER TO BE PRESERVED AND PROTECTED.
9. EXISTING CONCRETE FLATWORK TO BE PRESERVED AND PROTECTED.
10. EXISTING "DO NOT ENTER" SIGN, RELOCATED OUTSIDE OF EXPANDED PAVER AREA.
11. RELOCATED EXISTING BOLLARDS.
12. EXISTING PEDESTRIAN LIGHT POST TO BE REMOVED AND SALVAGED, RETURN TO

CITY OF BOISE PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT.
13. TRASH RECEPTACLE TO MATCH PREVIOUS PHASES.
14. BENCH TO MATCH PREVIOUS PHASES.
15. BIOBARRIER ROOT CONTROL SYSTEM.

CALLOUT NUMBERS COORDINATED
TO NUMBERED NOTES BELOW.#

Material Legend:

BARK MULCH TO MATCH
EXISTING AT 3" DEPTH.

A. PROTECT THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE OF THE TREES TO BE RETAINED ON SITE: (NOTE:
CRITICAL ROOT ZONE IS THE AREA DIRECTLY BELOW THE DRIP LINE OF THE TREE.)

A.A. CONSTRUCT PROTECTIVE FENCING OF CHAIN-LINK AROUND THE CRITICAL
ROOT ZONE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION OR CONSTRUCTION.

A.B. DO NOT ALLOW COMPACTION BY EQUIPMENT TRAFFIC DURING
CONSTRUCTION OR DURING DEMOLITION.

A.C. DO NOT ALLOW CEMENT TRUCKS TO RINSE WITHIN THE PROTECTION AREA,
ANYWHERE THAT TREE ROOTS EXIST OR IN PLANNED PLANTING BEDS.

A.D. DO NOT STOCKPILE MATERIALS, DEBRIS OR DIRT WITHIN THE TREE
PROTECTION AREA.

A.E. MAINTAIN WATERING WITHIN THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE FROM MID-APRIL TO
MID-OCTOBER AT THE RATE OF NOT LESS THAN THE 

 EQUIVALENT OF 1-1/2" OF WATER OVER THE ENTIRE AREA PER WEEK.
A.F. DO NOT TRENCH, EXCAVATE, FILL OR OTHERWISE DISTURB THE SOIL WITHIN

THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE.
A.G. ADJUST PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT LOCATIONS AS REQUIRED TO AVOID

DAMAGING TREE ROOTS.
B. PROTECT THE CROWN AND TRUNK OF TREES TO BE RETAINED ON SITE:

B.A. OPERATE EQUIPMENT IN SUCH A WAY AS TO AVOID CONTACT WITH TREE
TRUNKS OR BRANCHES.

B.B. PRUNING OF PUBLIC PROPERTY TREES SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A LICENSED
ARBORIST.

C. ALL TREES DAMAGED OR DESTROYED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
REPLACED USING THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

EXISTING TREE REPLACEMENT
1" TO 6" CALIPER.........................2X CALIPER OF TREE REMOVED
6" TO 12" CALIPER......................1.5X CALIPER OF TREE REMOVED
> 12" OR LARGER CALIPER.........1X CALIPER OF TREE REMOVED

EXAMPLE: IF AN 8" CALIPER TREE IS REMOVED, AN ACCEPTABLE
REPLACEMENT WOULD BE (3) 4" CALIPER TREES OR (4) 3" CALIPER TREES.

Tree Protection Notes:

NEW BRICK PAVER TO
MATCH EXISTING.

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT CAL QTY
BN BETULA NIGRA / RIVER BIRCH MULTI-TRUNK B & B 2" 2

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT FIELD2 QTY
BC BERBERIS THUNBERGII `CONCORDE` / CONCORDE JAPANESE BARBERRY2 GAL 22

PLANT SCHEDULE

HORIZONTAL SCALE:  1" = 10'

Site & Landscape Plan 10' 20'0

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

Fi
le

 L
oc

at
io

n:
g:

\2
01

7\
11

70
46

\c
ad

\1
17

04
6 

zc
 l1

00
 s

ite
 &

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl

an
.d

w
g

La
st

 P
lo

tte
d 

By
:d

ar
ia

n 
w

es
tri

ck
Da

te
 P

lo
tte

d:
Tu

es
da

y,
 M

ay
 3

0 
20

17
 a

t 0
9:

46
 A

M

Re
vi

si
on

s

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
he

re
in

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

co
pi

ed
 o

r r
ep

ro
du

ce
d

w
ith

ou
t e

xp
re

ss
 w

rit
te

n 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
f T

he
 L

an
d 

Gr
ou

p,
 In

c.

Un
au

th
or

ize
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 o

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
us

e 
ar

e 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

by
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

 la
w

.

Date of Issuance:

Project No.:

Designed by:

Checked by:

Sheet No.:

Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

PRELIMINARY

L1.00
DW

MD/MRT

05.30.17

117046

Zo
ni

ng
 C

er
tif

ic
at

e
Si

te
 &

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

la
n

Pi
on

ee
r 

Pa
th

w
ay

 A
dd

iti
on

11
th

 A
nd

 M
yr

tle

Bo
is

e
Id

ah
o

Vicinity Map:

DRAFT

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ 

DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 11TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LAND GROUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCORPORATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796



 

 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 15 

Exhibit C 
 

Pioneer Corner Project Cost Details 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 of 1

Statement of Probable Cost
462 E. Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616
(208) 939-4041 Fax (208) 939-4445

JOB TITLE: Pioneer Pathway Expansion
11th Street & Myrtle Street

JOB NUMBER: 117046
DATE: June 8, 2017

Price Total
Units Quantity Per Unit Amount

1.0: Demolition & Site Work
1.1 Demo of curbing LF 76 5.00 $380.00
1.2 Removal of trees EA 1 800.00 $800.00
1.3 Light removal LS 1 5000.00 $5,000.00
1.4 Bollard & sign relocation LS 1 3000.00 $3,000.00
1.5 Demolition, excavation, and grading SF 1,100 3.00 $3,300.00

Demolition & Site Work Subtotal: $12,480.00

2.0: Site Concrete Flatwork & Pavers
2.1 Pavers SF 1,100 22.00 $24,200.00
2.2 Concrete Curb LF 85 20.00 $1,700.00

Site Concrete Flatwork & Pavers Subtotal: $25,900.00

3.0: Site Furnishings
3.1 Bench EA 2 2,000.00 $4,000.00
3.2 Trash receptacle EA 1 1,200.00 $1,200.00

Site Furnishings Subtotal: $5,200.00

4.0: Landscaping & Irrigation
4.1 Landscape and irrigation repair LS 1 3,000.00 $3,000.00
4.2 Trees (2" caliper) EA 2 700.00 $1,400.00
4.3 Shrubs (2 gallon) EA 22 55.00 $1,210.00
4.4 Planter beds/ shrubs and mulch SF 300 5.00 $1,500
4.5 Topsoil amendments CY 12 18.00 $216
4.6 Root barrier LF 50 15.00 $750

Landscaping & Irrigation Subtotal: $8,076.00

Construction Subtotal: $51,656.00
Construction Contingency: 10% of construction subtotal $5,165.60

Project Grand Total: $56,822.00

Pricing Excludes:
1. Permitting Fees
2. Design Fees
3. Soft Cost: i.e. materials testing

Key: Note:
LS = Lump Sum This Statement of Probable Cost is based on the Schematic Plan prepared by The Land Group, 
SF = Square Foot dated, June 8, 2017. It is recognized that neither The Land Group nor the Owner
CY = Cubic Yard has any control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment, over the contractor's
EA = Each methods of determining bid prices or other competitive bidding market forces. Actual
LF = Linear Foot construction costs may vary from this evaluation.

Description of Work/Materials

4. ITD Improvements

DR
AF
T



 Page 1 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA BILL 

 
Agenda Subject: 
Contract Award for 2017 Streetscape Improvements 
 

 
Date: 
July 10, 2017 

 
Staff Contact: 
Mary Watson, Contracts 
Manager | Attorney at Law 

 
Attachments:   
    1.  Location Maps - 2017 Streetscape Improvements  
    2.  Resolution No. 1500 

 
Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1500 awarding 2017 Streetscape Improvements Project contract.  
 

 
Background: 
The 2017 Streetscape Improvements Project (“Project”) includes the blocks within the River 
Myrtle-Old Boise District and the Westside Downtown District as depicted in Attachment A.  In 
advance of inviting bids for these projects, the Agency conducted a pre-qualification process for 
public works contractors in accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2805(3)(b).  On March 13, 2017, 
the Agency Board adopted Resolution No. 1486 prequalifying Guho Corp., Knife River 
Corporation - Northwest, McAlvain Construction, Inc., and Wright Brothers, the Building 
Company, Eagle LLC, as eligible to submit competitive bids for the Project. 
 
The Agency issued a Project Manual with Invitation to Bid on June 8, 2017, which invited sealed 
bids from the four (4) prequalified companies.  Three bids were received by the June 29 
deadline: 
 

Company Total Bid Amount 
(Base Bid + Bid Alt.) 

Guho Corp. $1,043,739 

Knife River Corporation - Northwest Did not submit bid 

McAlvain Construction, Inc. $1,268,880 

Wright Brothers,  
The Building Company, Eagle LLC $1,179,081 

 
All bids were submitted in a timely manner and met all required submission criteria; all bidders 
have appropriate and valid public works contractor licenses.  Guho Corp. was the lowest 



 Page 2 

responsive bidder.  The Total Bid Amount shown is the sum of the Base Bid and Bid Alternate 
for this project. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
The Project was separated into two components: a Base Bid for the regular streetscape work 
and a Bid Alternate for the special building uplighting (in-sidewalk lights illuminating building 
fronts in the Old Boise Historic District).  The bid amounts shown are the sum of  the two 
components.  A 20% contingency amount was been added to the Project to take into account 
the uncertain nature of digging into streets and sidewalks first established in the late 1800s. The 
Agency’s FY2017 budget includes sufficient funding to proceed with Guho Corp. constructing 
the Base Bid and Bid Alternate elements.   
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 1500 awarding the construction contract for the 2017 Streetscape 

Improvements Project to Guho Corp. for the total bid amount. 
 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and execute the contract, and to expend 
funds up to the total amount bid (Base Bid plus Bid Alternate) plus a 20% contingency.    

 
 
 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1500 awarding the construction contract for the 2017 
Streetscape Improvements Project to Guho Corp. for the Bid amount of $1,043,739.00 and 
authorizing the Executive Director to take all necessary steps to negotiate and execute the 
contract, and to expend funds as set forth in the resolution. 

 
  



 Page 3 

Attachment 1 
Location Maps – 2017 Streetscape Improvements 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1500 Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1500 

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO:   

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
FINDING GUHO CORP. SUBMITTED THE LOWEST 
RESPONSIVE BID FOR THE 2017 STREETSCAPE 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A PUBLIC WORKS 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND 
GUHO CORP. TO UNDERTAKE AND COMPLETE THE 2017 
STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, a duly created 
and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (the “Agency”), authorized under the 
authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code, for the purpose of financing the undertaking of any urban renewal project 
(collectively the "Act"); and,  

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(3)(b) provides for a two-stage process for 
procurement of public works construction, which includes:  

• Stage 1:  Allows public agencies to establish preliminary supplemental
qualifications for purposes of prequalifying licensed public works contractors prior
to a competitive bidding process, and

• Stage 2:  Invites competitive bids only from licensed public works contractors that
have been prequalified at Stage 1; and,

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 67-2805(3)(b) allows a political jurisdiction to examine a 
public works contractor’s qualifications related to:  

• Demonstrated technical competence
• Experience constructing similar facilities
• Prior experience with the political subdivision
• Availability of resources, equipment, and personnel
• Overall performance history; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Request for Qualifications from licensed public works 
contractors for the 2017 Streetscape Improvements Project (the “Project”) on January 4, 2017, 
and published notice of the RFQ in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on January 4 and 11, 2017; 
and,  

ATTACHMENT 2

mwatson
Rectangle



RESOLUTION NO. 1500  Page 2 

 WHEREAS, five (5) construction companies provided an RFQ Submission by the 
February 8, 2017, deadline: Guho Corp., Knife River Corporation - Northwest, Layton 
Construction Company, LLC, McAlvain Construction, Inc., and Wright Brothers, The Building 
Company, Eagle LLC; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Agency staff examined the RFQ Submission from Layton Construction 
Company, LLC, and found that the company is not eligible to be pre-qualified because the 
company did not hold the correct public works contractors license to undertake streetscape 
improvements construction; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Resolution No. 1486 on March 13, 2017, prequalifying 
Guho Corp., Knife River Corporation - Northwest, McAlvain Construction, Inc., and Wright 
Brothers, the Building Company, Eagle LLC, as eligible to submit competitive bids for the 
Project; and,   

 
WHEREAS, the Agency issued a Project Manual with Invitation to Bid for the Project on 

June 8, 2017, which invited sealed bids from the four (4) prequalified companies; and,  
 
WHEREAS, since the Invitation to Bid was preceded by a prequalification process, no 

public notice was required or published regarding this Invitation to Bid; and,      
 
WHEREAS, the Agency received three (3) sealed bids in accordance with Idaho Code 

§ 67-2805(3)(b) by the due date and time of 3:00 p.m. on June 29, 2017; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids received met all of the required statutory and administrative criteria 

for submission and the bidders have appropriate and valid public works contractors licenses; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS, Guho Corp. submitted the lowest responsive bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Agency staff is recommending to the Board that the contract award for the 

2017 Streetscape Improvements Project be made to Guho Corp. as the lowest responsive 
bidder. 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS:   
 
 Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Board hereby finds that Guho Corp. submitted the lowest 
responsive bid for the 2017 Streetscape Improvements Project.   
 

Section 3: That the Executive Director of the Agency are hereby authorized to 
negotiate, sign, and enter into a public works construction agreement with Guho Corp. for the 
total bid amount (Base Bid plus Bid Alternate) of ONE MILLION FORTY-THREE THOUSAND 
SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,043,739.00), consistent with the 
Board’s stated instructions at the July 10, 2017, Agency Board Meeting and further are hereby 
authorized to execute all necessary documents required to implement the actions contemplated 
by the public works construction agreement, subject to representations by Agency legal counsel 
that all conditions precedent to actions and the public works construction agreement or other 



RESOLUTION NO. 1500  Page 3 

documents are acceptable based upon advice from Agency’s legal counsel that are consistent 
with the comments and discussions received at the July 10, 2017, Agency Board Meeting. 

 
Section 4: That the Executive Director is further authorized to expend funds for the 

total bid amount (Base Bid plus Bid Alternate) plus up to 20% for contingencies if determined 
necessary in his best judgement. 

 
Section 5:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval.    
 
PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on July 13, 2015.  Signed 

by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners, on July 13, 2015.   
 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY: 
 
 
      By:         
            John Hale, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      Ryan Woodings, Secretary 
 



Page 1 
 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

 

Agenda Subject: 
Proposed site plan revisions for The Afton Phase II, located at 620 S. 9th 
Street. 
 

Date: 
July 10, 2017  

Staff Contact: 
Shellan Rodriguez 
 

Attachments: 
Design Modifications Summary 
PDS Report to Design Review Commission 
 

Action Requested: 
Consider developer’s proposed design modifications for Phase II of The Afton and direct staff to 
draft appropriate amendments to the existing Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) 
as needed. 
 
 
Background: 
 
In March of 2014 RMH, Inc. was awarded the right to purchase and develop a CCDC-owned 
1.2-acre parcel fronting River Street between 8th and 9th Street in the RMOB URD. The award 
followed a competitive CCDC development RFQ/P process which attracted six proposals and 
“The Afton” mixed-use residential condominium project proposal was the selected project to 
proceed. This selection was followed by the subsequent negotiation and approval of an 
Exclusive Right to Negotiate Agreement and a Development and Disposition Agreement.  
 
The DDA was finalized in October 2014, and is based upon a two-phased project.  The ReUse 
appraisal (dated August 2014) concluded that 100% of the land value could be discounted l for 
each phase. The discounted land value is intended to total $1,700,000, with Phase I discount to 
be $765,000 at Phase I completion and Phase II discount to be $935,000 at Phase II 
completion. The full purchase price of the same amount for each phase is to be paid to CCDC 
by the developer upon conveyance of each parcel and prior to its development. The discounted 
land value is then reimbursed upon successful completion of the project as per the terms and 
conditions of the DDA. 
 
Today Phase I is virtually complete and CCDC Staff and the Developer are in the midst of 
certifying completion. Through the design and construction of Phase I minor revisions to the site 
plan occurred, including relocating the live/work units and decreasing some of the commercial 
space. These changes were previously approved by CCDC based on the terms of the DDA 
Phase I of the project is nearly 100% sold with the only remaining unsold units being the 
commercial condominium and one live/ work unit. The unsold live/ work unit is not actively on 
the market; it is being used for a model unit.  
 



Page 2 
 

Currently, Phase II of The Afton is fully entitled based on the original two-phase plan and has 
received City of Boise Design Review (DR) Approval. The original plan is referenced in the 
existing DDA.  
 
The developer has submitted a request to CCDC and to City of Boise DR to modify the 
previously approved design of Phase II.  The requested modifications are detailed and depicted 
in the following attachments. This modification will be heard at the July 12th DR committee 
meeting.  
 
In summary the modifications include: 

 Removal of commercial space at 9th and River 
 Inclusion of public art at 9th and River 
 Decrease in condo units from 39 to 35 
 Remove one level of parking, thus decreasing the height of the building from six to five 

stories 
 Revising the location of the footbridge 
 Removal of live/ work units from Phase  II 

 
These modifications require an amendment to the existing DDA which, if approved, could be 
drafted for final approval by the CCDC Board at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.  
 
The developer is requesting to move forward with the DDA amendment and receive the design 
review modification as presented in order to purchase the Phase II site from CCDC in late 
August or early September and to start construction soon thereafter. Phase II includes a 12-18 
mos. construction period and would be completed in the first quarter of 2019. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
There is no financial request.   

The proposed design modifications would require an amendment to the existing DDA, incurring 
additional and minor legal costs.  

The removal of commercial space and the overall decrease in development plan will likely 
decrease the tax incremented generated from the site over the life of the RMOB District.  

Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the modifications to the existing design in accordance with City of 
Boise’s Design Review Committee actions and conditions on July 12, 2017. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move to direct staff to approve any design review changes in accordance with the City of 
Boise’s Design Review Committee’s actions and conditions and to draft any necessary 
Disposition and Development Agreement amendments for future CCDC Board approval.  
 
 

 



 

 

 

June 29, 2017  

 

TO: CCDC Board Commissioners 

FROM: John Brunelle 

RE: July Board Meeting Item: The Afton Phase II Design Modifications/DDA Amendment 
 
CCDC commissioners John Hale, Dana Zuckerman, and Maryanne Jordan met yesterday with 
Mike Hormaechea, the developer of The Afton. The meeting, which included project team 
members Shellan Rodriguez, Laura Williams, Todd Bunderson, and me, was necessary 
because the proposed design modifications to Phase II do not meet the existing Disposition and 
Development Agreement (DDA), which was finalized in October 2014. The developer needs 
agency approval to change the DDA.    

Mr. Hormaechea presented the proposed design and compared it to the original included in the 
DDA. If CCDC’s board is agreeable and wants to continue with the project despite the design 
changes, then CCDC will amend the DDA and convey the Phase II parcel with the site write 
down as planned in the original DDA. The conveyance will not occur until construction financing 
is in place and the City has approved Phase II. 

The requested Phase II changes are: 

• Removal of commercial/retail space in Phase II (2800 SF originally presented to CCDC) 
• Addition of privately funded public artwork instead of the commercial space 
• Decrease from 39 to 35 residential units 
• Decrease from two podium parking levels to one 
• Relocate footbridge connecting two buildings 
• Reduction in width of “alley” between Phase I and Phase II 
• Additional roof and façade modulation 

Approval of the changes is an Action Item at our July 10th CCDC Board meeting.  The proposed 
design is also on the City Design Review Commission agenda on July 12th.   

More details are provided on the following pages. Please contact Shellan if you if you have any 
questions about the proposed modifications to Phase II or the process outlined above. Direct 
line: 208-319-1225.   

 

 

 



COLLABORATE. CREATE. DEVELOP. COMPLETE.

The Afton Phase II 
Design Modifications

1



620 S. 9th Street RFP & DDA Timeline
December 2013: 

RFP Advertised

March 2014: 
RFP Awarded to RMH (6 submittals)

October 2014 : 
DDA signed with phased project 
100% site write down, $1,700,000 value

October 2015: 
Phase I conveyed/ construction started

July 2016: 
CCDC agreed to reimburse $270,000 for 
previously unknown environmental remediation

June 2017: 
Phase I complete (Estimated TDC $14 million)

TBD: 
Phase II conveyance/ construction 

2



Original Proposal in DDA
1.9th and River corner

• 2800 s.f. retail
2. 39 condos
3.6 floors
4.2 levels podium parking
5. Footbridge to the north
6. Live/ work on Alley Phase I and II 

3

New June 2017 Proposal
1. 9th and River corner

• Interactive public art install
2. 35 condos
3. 5 floors
4. 1 level podium parking
5. Footbridge to the south
6. Residential along alley Phase I and II
7. Additional Roof and Façade Modulation



2014 Today

4



2014 Today

5



Birdseye View of Phase II Proposed

6



Corner of 9th & River

7



   

          Planning Division Project Report   1 
 
File Number DRH17-00213 
Applicant Michael Hormachea 
Property Address 611 South 8th Street and 620 South 9th Street 
  
Public Hearing Date  July 12, 2017 
Heard by Design Review Committee 
  
Design Review Planner Andrea N. Tuning 
Design Review Supervisor Sarah M. Schafer 

 
 
Public Notification 
 
Newspaper notification published on:                                                      May 30, 2017 
Radius notices mailed to properties within 300-feet on:                         May 30, 2017 
Staff posted notice on site on:                                                                   May 19, 2017 

 
 
Table of Contents  
 

 

  Agency Comments                                                                              24 
 

1.  Project Data and Facts 2 
2.  Land Use 2 
3.  Project Proposal 3 
4.  Boise City Comprehensive Plan 5 
5.  Analysis and Findings 6 
6.  Conclusion and Recommended Conditions  18 
 
Exhibits 

 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 2 of 24

 

1. Project Data and Facts 
Applicant/Status 
  

Michael Hormachea / Owner and Applicant 

Architect 
  

Joshua Hersel – CTA, Inc. / Architect 
 

Location of Property  
 

611 South 8th Street and 620 South 9th Street 

Present Zoning and Land Use
  

C-5DD (Central Business District with Downtown and 
Design Review Overlays) zone 

Applicant’s Request  Modify Phase II of the Afton Condominium project to 
create a five-story building with parking at the ground 
floor and 35-residential units located on the upper four 
levels. 

 
2. Land Use 
Description and Character of Surrounding Area 
The property is zoned C-5DD (Central Business with Downtown Design Review), is 
located in the Downtown Planning Area, and is designated as Downtown Mixed-Use 
within the comprehensive plan.  The site is also located within the P-1 parking overlay 
District. 
 
The site is located on River Street between 8th Street and 9th Street in downtown Boise.  
The surrounding area is a mixture of urban uses including warehouses, a research and 
development company, a public library, a private school, and performing arts facilities.  
 
9th Street has a block frontage designation of “Commercial/Mixed-Use” while River 
Street is designated as “Landscaped” and 8th Street has a designation of “Storefront” 
within the Downtown Design Review Guidelines.  The intersection of 9th Street and River 
Street is also designated as a “Gateway and High Visibility Street Corner” within the 
Downtown Design Review Guidelines.   
 
River Street is designated as “Urban Concrete” streetscape typology while 9th Street is 
classified as “Neighborhood” streetscape typology and 8th Street is identified as “Urban 
Brick” streetscape typology within the Downtown Boise Streetscape Standards and 
Specifications Manual.  

 
Adjacent Land Uses and Zoning  
North: Parking lots / zoned C-5DD 
South: River Street, then a research and development facility / zoned R-ODD 
East:  8th Street, then Foothills School / zoned C-5DDC 
West: 9th Street, then warehouses / zoned C-5DD 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 3 of 24

 

 

 
3. Project Proposal 
 
Site Design 
Land Use           Percentage 

Percentage of the site devoted to building coverage: 90% 

Percentage of the site devoted to paving: 5% 

Percentage of the site devoted to landscaping: 5% 

TOTAL 100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site Characteristics 
The site is flat and being used as a staging ground for Phase I of the Afton project. 
Special Considerations  
There is a primary underground distribution line that will run along the east side of the 
proposed building.  The applicant will be required to coordinate with Idaho Power to 
ensure adequate building clearance from the distribution line has been provided. 
 
History of Previous Actions 
DRH12-00033: Proposal for a seven-story building with commercial space and 130   
                         residential units. 
DRH10-00173: Proposal to remodel the existing warehouse building and construct a new 
                         parking lot for a research and development facility. 
DRH14-00262:  Approval to construct two 6-story buildings in two phases with 67- 
                          residential units and 8,000-square feet of retail space. 
DRH15-00459:  Proposal to modify the exterior elevations of the approved buildings. 
DRH16-00093:  Proposal to modify the exterior building materials of the approved  
                         buildings. 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 4 of 24

 

Parking  

 
Setbacks 
 
Yard 

 
Building 

 
Structured Parking 

 Required Proposed Required Proposed 

9th Street – Front - West 0’ 0’ 0’ 0’ 
River Street – Side Yard - South 0’ 11’ 0’ 27’ 
Interior Side – North 0’ 0’ 0’ 0’ 

 
Transportation 

 
Roadway 

 
Approximate 

Frontage 
 

 
Functional 

Classification 

 
Traffic Count 

Level  
of  

Service 

Acceptable 
Level of 
Service 

LOS 
+ 

Project 

 
 

8th Street  
 

 
155-feet 

 
Local Street 

1,215 south of 
River Street in 
December of 

2012 

 
 

C 

 
 

C 

 
 

C 

 
River 
Street  

 
300’ 

 
Collector 

13,629 west of 
9th Street in 

August of 2014 

 
 
F 

 
 
F 

 
 
F 

 
 

9th Street 

 
234’ 

 
Principal 
Arterial 

16,704 South 
of Myrtle 
Street in 

February of 
2013 

 
 

C 

 
 

C 

 
 

C 

 
 

Proposed  Required  

Accessible spaces proposed: 2 Accessible spaces required: 2 

Total parking spaces proposed:  46 Total parking spaces required:  0 

Compact spaces proposed:  0 Compact spaces allowed:  18 

Bicycle parking spaces proposed: 36 Bicycle parking spaces required: 35 

Parking Reduction requested?  No Off-site Parking requested? No 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 5 of 24

 

Fencing 
The applicant is not proposing any new fencing with this application and the site does not 
have any existing fencing. 
 
Outdoor Lighting 
The applicant has proposed historic street lighting and exterior building lighting with this 
application.  The applicant will be required to coordinate all historic street lighting with 
Tom Marshall in the Boise City Public Works Division.  All exterior building lighting will be 
required to install lighting that spills onto and illuminates the public sidewalk and minimizes 
light pollution. 
   

 
4. Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan 

Zoning Ordinance Sections 

11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) (i) Site Design – A - E 

11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) (ii) Structure Design – A - E 

11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) (iii) Adopted Plans and Design Guidelines 

11-07-03 Off-Street Parking and Loading Guidelines 

11-04-05 Commercial Zoning Districts 
 

Comprehensive Plan Sections 
3-9 Downtown Regional Mixed-Use Land Use Designation 

3-14 Design Principles for Mixed Use Activity Center 

Structure(s) Design  
Number and Proposed Use of Buildings   1 building with 35-residential condominiums 

with structured parking 
Proposed Building Height 75-feet 
Number of Stories Five-stories 
Unit Type 10 – 2-Bedroom / 2 Bathroom Units 

4 - 1-Bedroom / 2 Bathroom Units 
4 – 2-Bedroom / 2 Bathroom Units 
4 – 1-Bedroom + Den / 1.75 Bathroom Units 
7 – 2-Bedroom / 2.5 Bathroom Units 
4 – Studio / 1 Bathroom Units 
2 – 3 Bedroom / 3 Bathroom Units 
35-Units Total 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 6 of 24

 

3-47 Design Principles for Corridors 

DT-1 Downtown Planning Area 
 
 
 
 

Adopted Plans 
Downtown Boise Design Review Standards and Guidelines 

Transportation Action Plan 

River Street – Myrtle Street Master Plan 

River Street Neighborhood Plan (Pending) 

 
5. Analysis/Findings 

 
The History 
On August 13, 2014, the applicant received approval from the Boise City Design 
Review Committee to construct two mixed-use buildings containing 122,548-
square feet of mixed-use spaces.  The project included two six-story buildings with 
structured parking and retail uses, live/work units as well as residential 
condominiums.  Phase one consisted of one building (the easternmost building) 
containing 28-residential units and phase two consisted of one building (the 
westernmost building) containing 39-residential units. Retail spaces of 8,015-square 
feet were provided on the ground floor of the two buildings that faced River Street, 
8th Street and 9th Street.  The development was approved with the Findings of 
Fact, Conclusions of Law and Recommended Conditions of Approval within the 
original project report issued on October 3, 2016.  Those Conditions of Approval 
were: 
 

• Provide 41 additional bicycle parking spaces for a total of 67, with a 
minimum of 25% being covered for weather protection. 

• Submit a detailed landscape plan for the rooftop decks with species, 
quantities and sizes proposed. 
   

In 2015, the applicant modified the exterior elevations of Phase I to add 
decorative CMU to the north elevation in an effort to add additional design 
interest to the proposed fire wall on the north elevation. 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 7 of 24

 

In 2016, the applicant modified the exterior building materials of Phase I by 
utilizing stucco on the upper floors instead of the fiber cement siding that was 
previously approved. 
 
The applicant recently completed the construction of Phase I of the Afton 
Condominium Project.  The approved elevations for Phase I are as follows: 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 8 of 24

 

 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 9 of 24

 

Site Design - Section 11-03-04.12 C(7)(d) (i) 
 

A. Traffic Impact – That traffic impact is minimized and the pedestrians and 
cyclists have been provided for through the use of sidewalks, pathways, 
landscaping, and safe parking lot design.  

 

 
 

The Afton Project as a Whole 
The entire Afton Condominium Project has frontage on 8th Street, 9th Street and 
River Street.  Originally the two structures included two six-story mixed-use buildings 
facing onto a 20-foot wide internal pedestrian mall that would create a vibrant 
and lively pedestrian space.   
 
Phase I of the Afton 
The building included in Phase I was configured with the first two floors as 
structured parking and retail space, with an “L” shaped massing of the upper floors 
overlooking rooftop green space and live/work units below.  There were 5,198-
square feet of retail spaces with ceiling height glazing proposed on River Street 
and a portion of 8th Street, with 25-residential units above and 3-live/work units 
located off of the pedestrian mall.  The project evolved throughout the process 
and Phase I was ultimately constructed with a total of 25-residential 
condominiums, 3-live/work units located at grade on 8th Street and 1,995-square 
feet of ground floor retail proposed on River Street and portions of 8th Street.   
 
Phase II of the Afton 
Phase II was approved as a six-story building.   The first two floors contained 2,817-
square feet of retail space, structured parking and 4- live/work units.  The upper 
floor massing was placed along 9th Street and River Street and contained 35-



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 10 of 24

 

residential condominiums, with a rooftop plaza on the second floor interior to the 
project. The retail spaces on River Street and a portion of 9th Street featured ceiling 
height glazing.   
 
The applicant is now proposing to modify Phase II of the project to create a five-
story building with parking and 3-residential condominium units located at the 
ground floor and 32-residential units located on the upper four stories.  The 
proposed modifications will eliminate the 2,817-sqaure feet of retail space that 
was previously approved in 2014 and will modify the site circulation as well as 
building elevations.  

 

 
 
The red areas identified in the figure above depict the 8,015-square feet of retail 
space proposed and approved in 2014 for the Afton Project.  When Phase I was 
constructed, 1,995-square feet of retail space was constructed with a potential of 
3,990-square feet and phase II is proposing to eliminate all of the proposed retail 
space.  There are significant concerns with the elimination of the retail space with 
Phase II located on River Street and 9th Street.   
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 11 of 24

 

Ground floor retail provides a continuous network of experiences that are active, 
safe, comfortable and engaging.  Recent trends show that more and more 
individuals are seeking to locate their homes in areas that offer a variety of 
amenities and offerings, including:  shops, restaurants and gyms.  Ultimately the 
City of Boise would like to have an activated ground floor component that 
increases pedestrian comfort and safety, increases an areas desirability and 
creates a place for the users of the building and surrounding neighborhood to visit.   
 
The River Street–Myrtle Street Master Plan identifies this block as an “Urban Village” 
with higher density residential uses that also include smaller-scale office uses and 
neighborhood oriented retail and restaurants.  The River Street–Myrtle Street 
Master Plan also notes that retail uses are encouraged to occupy the first floor of 
buildings where upper floors are occupied by other uses.  The pending River Street 
Neighborhood Plan identifies this area as an “Activity Center.”  Furthermore, the 
Boise Downtown Design Review Guidelines designates this corner as a “Gateway 
and High Visibility Street Corner”  and requires a minimum of 25% façade 
transparency on River Street and 15% façade transparency on 9th Street.  To be 
consistent with the original proposal approved in 2014, the River Street-Myrtle 
Street Master Plan, the pending River Street Neighborhood Plan and the 
Downtown Boise Design Review Guidelines, the applicant will be required to 
provide approximately 2,000-square feet of retail space on the ground floor of the 
proposed building facing 9th Street and River Street.   
 

 
 
The internal pedestrian mall was originally approved as a 20-foot wide pedestrian 
area that would serve as access to 7-live/work units located within Phase I and 
Phase II.  The proposed live-work units were removed from this pedestrian mall and 
have been replaced with a total of 6-single-family residential condominiums.  The 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 12 of 24

 

pedestrian mall will now include outdoor patios and landscaping that caters to an 
intimate setting for the 6-residential condominiums.   
 
The project lies within the P-1 parking overlay which does not require any parking 
to support the use based upon the assumption that individuals will utilize the 
existing public parking garages and alternative modes of transportation.   Multi-
family buildings are required to provide one bicycle parking space per residential 
unit. The applicant has noted they are proposing 36 bicycle spaces located on 
the ground level to serve the 35 residential units within the building.   Staff can only 
identify 28 bicycle parking spaces.  As such the applicant will be required to 
provide the required 35-bicycle parking spaces.  It is also recommended that the 
applicant provide bicycle parking within the pedestrian mall to provide bicycle 
accommodations for visitors and patrons. 
 
The applicant is proposing to provide 46 vehicular parking spaces which consists 
of 36-standard parking spaces, 8 compact parking spaces, one van accessible 
space and one traditional accessible space.  The majority of the parking stalls 
have been designed as 75-degree parking.  The proposed drive aisles within the 
parking garage have been designed at 18-feet in width.  The City of Boise does 
have different types of angled parking however 75-degrees are not a standard 
angle that has been adopted.  As such, the applicant will be required to follow 
the guidelines established for 90-degree parking.  To comply with the adopted 
ordinance and provide a safe and efficient back up space, the applicant will be 
required to provide 22-feet of back up space for all drive aisles.  The applicant has 
also proposed one van accessible space and one regular accessible space.  The 
regular accessible space depicts bicycle parking located within the access aisle.  
ADA requirements require all access aisle to be clear and functional.  To comply 
with ADA guidelines, the applicant will be required to provide a 5-foot clear 
access aisle for the regular accessible space. 

 
The Downtown Streetscape Standards identify River Street as an “Urban 
Concrete” streetscape typology but was originally approved as a 
“Neighborhood” streetscape typology.  River Street was improved with an 8-foot 
sidewalk separated from the curb line by an 8-foot wide planter.  The planter 
includes street trees spaced at 30-feet on center and street lights spaced at 54-
feet on center.  The applicant is proposing to continue this streetscape design.  It 
is recommended the newly constructed streetscape be continued on the River 
Street frontage to provide a consistent appearance for the entire block frontage.  
The applicant is proposing to install a vehicle pullout located on River Street for 
residents to utilize for loading and unloading.  This proposal removes 
approximately 60-feet of planter area, creates a break in the streetscape pattern, 
and eliminates two street trees and one street lights.  It is recommended the 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 13 of 24

 

vehicle pullout be eliminated from the streetscape and the private loading and 
unloading area be relocated within the proposed parking garage or on 8th Street.  
This recommendation is supported by the Ada County Highway District and the 
Boise City Transportation Planner. 
 
The Downtown Streetscape Standards identify 9th Street as “Neighborhood” 
streetscape typology.  This typology requires the applicant provide an 8-foot wide 
(minimum) planter, and a 6-foot wide sidewalk.  The planter should contain Class 
II street trees spaced approximately every 30-feet and appropriately located 
historic street lights that provide four to five street lights per block.  The applicant is 
proposing to construct 9th Street with a planter that varies from 5-feet to 8-feet in 
width with a 6-foot detached concrete sidewalk.  The street trees are proposed to 
be spaced 33-feet on center and the historic street lights are proposed to be 
spaced 72-feet on center.  The historic street lights are currently existing.  It is 
recommended the planter width be a minimum of 8-feet the entire length of the 
site.  It is also recommended the street tree spacing be adjusted to ensure the 
street lights are centrally located between the trees to provide efficient pedestrian 
scale lighting.  
 
The on-site pedestrian network will build upon the sidewalks and streetscapes 
provided on the 9th Street and River Street and will include a pedestrian mall 
located between the two Afton buildings.  The applicant will also be relocating 
the pedestrian bridge that connects the two buildings within the project.  The 
pedestrian bridge was originally proposed and approved located along the north 
property line.  There were building code issues that arose with the bridge being 
located on the property line so the applicant is now proposing to relocate the 
bridge approximately 110-feet to the south.  This will make the pedestrian bridge 
more prominent and visible to the public right-of-way.  The bridge will connect 
roof top open spaces located on the two buildings.  It will be constructed of 
bronze metal that will match the patio railings located on both buildings to provide 
a cohesive appearance. 
 
With the proposed modifications, the on-site pedestrian facilities will provide a 
well-connected sidewalk network extending throughout the site, on River Street 
and on 9th Street.   
 
Traffic Impact Summary 
With the recommended conditions of approval, this development will provide 
sidewalks and street trees, as well as a safe pedestrian and cycling network 
throughout the site.  Based on the preceding analysis and the attached conditions 
of approval, the project will comply with Boise City Code Section 11-03-04.12.C.7.d 
to minimize the traffic impact.   



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 14 of 24

 

 
B. Landscaping, Stabilization, and Screening – That landscaping screens buffer 

adjacent uses, and screen or conceal unsightly areas. 
 

The applicant has proposed streetscapes along 9th Street and River Street as well 
as landscaping within the pedestrian mall, and on the roof deck. The majority of 
the streetscapes include trees with small planter beds located adjacent to the 
building because of the urban setting.  The landscaping will provide year round 
color and design interest to the urban setting that is proposed. 

 
The applicant has proposed an internal trash room centrally located within the 
parking garage.  The applicant shall coordinate with the Solid Waste Manager to 
ensure compliance with the location and the dimensional standards. Mechanical 
units will be located on the roof and shall be screened by the proposed full height 
bronze colored decorative mesh. 

 
Landscaping, Stabilization and Screening Summary  
Based on the preceding analysis and the recommended conditions of approval, the 
landscape and screening methods for the utility locations and mechanical units will 
be screened to conceal them from public view and will comply with Boise City Code 
Section 11-03-04.12.C.7.d and 3.7 and 3.8 of the Boise Design Review Guidelines. 
 
Grading and Drainage 
Boise City Code Section 11-03-04.12.C.7.d states: 
A.  That on-site grading and drainage have been designed so as to minimize off-site 

impact and provide for erosion control. 
 

The grading and drainage will be reviewed by Boise City Public Works at the time 
of building permit along with the Ada County Highway District to ensure all 
drainage is contained on site and street sections meet all agency requirements.  

 
Signage 
Boise City Code Section 11-03-04.12.C.7.d states: 
A. Signage:  That signs provide for business identification, minimize clutter and comply 

with the sign regulations. 
 

No signs are proposed for this development at this time.  At the time the applicant 
considers building identification, they will be required to submit a separate sign 
application.  The project must comply with all ordinance regulations in effect at 
the time the sign application is submitted.  

 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 15 of 24

 

Structure Design - Section 11-03-04.12 C(7)(d) (ii) 
 

Building Location Type/Color 
Roof: Single-ply membrane – white 

Exterior Walls: Stucco - Orange  
Brick – Red 

Cordoba Stone - Grey 
CMU - Grey 

Fascia and Canopies: Aluminum composite - Bronze 
Garage Screen: Perforated metal panel screen wall - Grey 
Windows/ Doors: Aluminum storefront entry – Bronze 

Fiberglass windows for residential units- Bronze 
Mechanical Equipment: Rooftop screened rooftop screens and parapet walls 

 

 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 16 of 24

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 17 of 24

 

 
 

 
 
Both buildings share a cohesive design and material palette. The buildings have a 
substantial amount of brick and stone on the ground floor. The upper stories feature 
recessed balconies, stucco in a burnt orange color, and windows in an ordered 
pattern delineating the façade. The north firewall wall has provided design interest 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 18 of 24

 

through the use of scored concrete panels interspersed with large fields of decorative 
CMU block. The structures feature overhanging flat roof designs with a substantial 
fascia thickness providing a well-proportioned terminus to the top of the buildings. The 
color selection consists of tones that will provide design interest without detracting 
from adjacent properties. The building is in scale with other structures within the 
immediate area and the proposed use will not negatively impact the adjacent 
properties. 
 
Building Materials 
Boise City Code 11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) states: 
Exterior materials that complement surrounding development in terms of color and 
relief should be utilized.  
 
The applicant is proposing to construct Phase II of the Afton Condominium Project as 
a five-story structure that includes ground floor parking, 3-residential condominiums 
located at the ground floor and 32-residential units located on the upper four-stories.  
The building is proposed to be constructed of burnt orange stucco, cordoba stone 
and red brick.  The building will also feature bronze aluminum composite fascia, 
bronze fiberglass windows, bronze aluminum hand rails and roof top mechanical 
screens.  The buildings utilize warm natural colors on the building.   
 
The selected colors and materials are appropriate for a multi-family development 
within the downtown core.  To comply with the Boise City Downtown Design 
Guidelines, it is recommended the applicant add additional brick to ensure the 
amount of stucco utilized on the south and west elevations do not exceed 50% 
(4.4.2.3).  It is also recommended the applicant should employ techniques to recess 
windows above the ground floor a minimum of 2-inches from the façade (4.3.2).  With 
these minor modifications, the colors, materials and textures provided on the building 
will complement the area and will also present an aesthetically appealing 
appearance at the time of construction while minimizing the maintenance costs 
associated with the building in the future. 

 
Building Massing and Articulation 
Boise City Code 11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) states: 
The height to width relationship should be compatible and consistent with the 
architecture in the area. 
 
The Downtown Design Review Guidelines require modulated elements to prevent 
sterile, box-like buildings and limits façade widths without significant modulation to no 
more than 120 feet in width. The proposed building has separated massing, changes 
in colors and materials, wall plane modulation, variations in form provided by 
horizontal and vertical design elements to break up the massing of the structures and 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 19 of 24

 

provide design interest (Section 4.2.2). The massing, height, and design are typical of 
an urban downtown building and are compatible with surrounding structures and 
uses. The building is in scale with Phase I of the Afton, the Boise Library and other 
structures within the immediate downtown area and will not negatively impact the 
adjacent properties. 
 
Shadow Relief and Architectural Details 
Boise City Code 11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) states: 
Openings in the facade shall be consistent with the architecture in the area. (For 
example, balconies, bays, and porches are encouraged with a minimum of 
monotonous flat planes to provide shadow relief).  
 
The building design uses horizontal and vertical protrusions, canopies, varied 
rooflines, varied massing, and variations in building form to provide design interest. 
Shadow lines are provided by the horizontal projections and wall plane modulation. 
Windows have been appropriately provided on all elevations of the building.  
 
The Boise Downtown Design Review Guidelines require the applicant to provide 15% 
window transparency on 9th Street between 4-feet and 8-feet above the sidewalk 
and 25% window transparency on River Street between 4-feet and 8-feet above the 
sidewalk.   The window transparency will present an active and attractive presence 
along the public roadways and will be a beneficial addition to the surrounding 
neighborhood.   
 
Building Design Summary 
Overall, the design contains appropriate colors and materials, fenestration, and 
modulation.  Each of these elements assists to break up the massing of the structures, 
provides an additional depth of character through shading and relief and provides 
architectural design interest to the buildings.   The applicant’s proposal will integrate 
well with the other developments within this and will complement the mixture of uses 
within the area. Based on the preceding analysis and the suggested conditions of 
approval, the building design will comply with Boise City Code Section 11-03-
04.12.C.7.d. 

 
6. Conclusion and Recommended Conditions 
 
Staff finds the project complies with Sections 11-03-04.12 C (7)(d) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Design Review Guidelines and the goals and policies of the Boise City 
Comprehensive Plan and would recommend approval subject to the following 
conditions. 
 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 20 of 24

 

Site Specific Conditions 
 
1. Compliance with the plans and specifications submitted to and on file in the Planning 

and Development Services Department dated received May 10, 2017, except as 
expressly modified by the following conditions: 

 
a. Provide 22-feet of back up space for all parking drive aisles.   
b. Provide a 5-foot clear and unobstructed access aisle for the regular 

accessible space. 
c. Provide a total of 35-bicycle parking spaces with 9-of the spaces being 

covered.   
d. It is recommended (not required) the applicant provide bicycle parking 

within the pedestrian mall to provide bicycle accommodations for visitors 
and patrons. 

e. Provide approximately 2,000-square feet of retail space on the ground floor 
of the proposed building with glazing on 9th Street and River Street.   

f. Provide 15% window transparency on 9th Street between 4-feet and 8-feet 
above the sidewalk. 

g. Provide 25% window transparency on River Street between 4-feet and 8-
feet above the sidewalk.   

h. Eliminate the vehicle pullout on River Street and relocate the private 
loading and unloading area within the proposed parking garage. 

i. Widen the streetscape planter on 9th Street to be a minimum of 8-feet the 
entire length of the site.   

j. Adjust the street tree spacing on 9th Street to ensure the street lights are 
centrally located between the street trees. 

k. Add additional brick to the south and west elevations to ensure the amount 
of stucco does not exceed 50% of the street facing facades. 

l. Employ techniques to recess window above the ground floor a minimum of 
2-inches from the façade.  Submit wall sections showing the windows have 
been recessed a minimum of 2-inches. 

m. Mechanical units will be required to provide full height bronze colored 
decorative mesh. 

 
Revised plans indicating compliance with the above conditions shall be submitted to 
Planning Staff for approval prior to application for any construction permits. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 21 of 24

 

Responsible Agencies and Other Boise City Departments 
 

2. A Building Permit approval is contingent upon the determination that the site is in 
conformance with the Boise City Subdivision Ordinance.  Contact the Planning and 
Development Services Subdivision Section at (208)608-7089 regarding questions 
pertaining to this condition. 

 
3. The applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Boise City Public Works 

Department: 
 

. Drainage (May 11, 2017) 

. Sewers (May 12, 2017) 

. Street Lights (May 12, 2017) 

. Solid Waste (May 12, 2017) 
 

Please contact BCPW at (208)608-7150. All items required by BCPW shall be included 
on the plans/specifications that are submitted for a Building Permit. Please note that 
any changes or modifications by the owner to the approved Storm Water Plan must 
be resubmitted to BCPW for approval. 

 
4. Prior to a Building Permit and prior to any construction on the site, an Erosion and 

Sediment Control Permit must be obtained from the Building Division of the Planning 
and Development Services Department. 

 
5. A Building Permit is contingent upon approval from Boise City Community Forestry for 

tree planting within right-of-ways, per Title 9, Chapter 16, Section 09-16-05.2.  Contact 
Boise City Community Forestry at (208)608-7700 with questions regarding this 
condition.  

 
6. Compliance with the requirements of the Ada County Highway District (ACHD) 

comments provided May 18, 2017. 
 

7. The applicant shall comply with the Boise City Fire Code as outlined in the 
comments dated May 30, 2017.  This will require aerial access to the building and 
will require high flow fire hydrants.   

 
Standard Conditions of Approval 
 
8. All loading activities and site maintenance (with the exception of snow removal) are 

limited to Mondays through Fridays between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. 
and Saturdays and Sundays between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 
 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 22 of 24

 

9. Construction activity on site is restricted to the hours of 6:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Mondays 
through Fridays and 8:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays.   
 

10. All landscaping areas shall be provided with an underground irrigation system. Land-
scaping shall be maintained according to current accepted industry standards to 
promote good plant health, and any dead or diseased plants shall be replaced. All 
landscape areas with shrubs shall have an approved mulch such as bark or soil aid.   
 

11. All landscape trees shall be pruned in accordance with the American National 
Standards Institute's Standard Practices for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A300 - latest 
edition). No trees on the site shall be topped, headed back, rounded over or 
otherwise disfigured. Contact Boise City Community Forestry at (208)608-7700 for 
information regarding tree care operations. 
 

12. An approved protective curbing shall enclose all landscape areas where they are 
adjacent to parking areas or driveways. 
 

13. Swales/retention/detention areas shall not be located along the streets, unless it can 
be shown that landscaped berms/shrubs will screen the swales. 
 

14. Vision Triangles as defined under Section 11-012-03 of the Boise City Code shall remain 
clear of sight obstructions. 
 

15. In compliance with Boise City Code, anyone planting, pruning, removing or 
trenching/excavating near any tree(s) on ACHD or State right-of-ways must obtain a 
permit from Boise City Community Forestry at least one (1) week in advance of such 
work by calling (208)608-7700. Species shall be selected from the Boise City Tree 
Selection Guide. 
 

16. Existing healthy trees shall be saved where not in conflict with building locations or 
required driveways as determined by the Boise City Forester and approved by the 
Design Review staff. Existing grading shall be altered as little as possible, with a 
minimum compaction of topsoil within the tree dripline area. Soil sterilants shall not be 
applied near the dripline of these trees. Pervious paving shall be provided within the 
dripline area, unless otherwise approved by the Boise City Forester and the Design 
Review staff, to allow surface air and water penetration to the feeder root zone of 
trees near paved areas.  
 

17. Deciduous trees shall be not less than 2" to 2½" caliper size at the time of planting, 
evergreen trees 5' to 6' in height, and shrubs 1 to 5 gallons, as approved by the Design 
Review staff. All plants are to conform to the American Association of Nurseryman 
Standards in terms of size and quality. 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 23 of 24

 

 
18. All surface drainage shall be reviewed and approved by ACHD and BCPW. Perimeter 

grading shall be designed to match the existing grade of the adjoining properties. 
 

19. All parking areas and driveways shall be paved and striped. All accessible spaces 
and approved compact spaces shall be clearly marked and signed as required. 
Bicycle parking, as required by Section 11-07-03.3.B of the Boise City Code, shall be 
provided. 
 

20. All Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements shall be met.  A total of 5 
accessible space(s) shall be provided, which are to be located on the shortest 
accessible route of travel to the accessible building entry. 
 

21. Any outside lighting shall be reflected away from adjacent property and streets. 
Exterior light fixture details shall be submitted to the Design Review staff for approval 
prior to issuance of a Building Permit. Impacts on residential areas shall not be 
permitted. 

22. The illumination level of all light fixtures shall not exceed two (2) foot-candles as 
measured one (1) foot above the ground at property lines shared with residentially 
zoned or used parcels. 
 

23. Boise City Fire Department requires water mains, fire hydrants and temporary Fire 
Department access to be installed, inspected and approved by the Fire Department 
prior to commencement of combustible construction.  Note:   Temporary water and 
temporary access during construction may be permitted upon request to, and 
approval by, the Fire Department. 
 

24. No obstructions (landscaping, signs, fences or other elements) shall encroach upon 
any required fire access or fire facility. 
 

25. All signs will require approval from the Planning and Development Services 
Department prior to installation.   
 

26. Trash receptacles and on-grade and rooftop mechanical fixtures and equipment 
shall be concealed from public view by use of an approved sight-obscuring method. 
All screening materials shall be compatible with the building materials/design. 
 

27. Utility services shall be installed underground. 
 

28. Rain gutters shall be provided on eaves projecting over pedestrian entries and 
walkways to protect the occupants from undesirable storm runoff. Through-wall 
mechanical units shall be architecturally integrated into the building design, as 
approved by the Design Review staff. Roof vents shall be screened or painted to 



 
 

DRH17-00213 
Design Review Committee / July 12, 2017 
 1 

 

      

Page 24 of 24

 

match the roof color. 
 

29. No trees within street right-of-ways shall be removed or pruned without approval from 
Boise City Community Forestry in compliance with Boise City Code. No trees within the 
property, as shown on the plans and approved by the Design Review Committee or 
the Design Review staff, shall be removed without the approval of the Design Review 
Committee or the Design Review staff and in compliance with Boise City Code. 
 

30. In the event a tree is removed without prior approval, the tree shall be replaced with 
a tree with trunk caliper 1.5 times the one removed or with a sufficient number of trees, 
as approved by the Design Review Committee or the Design Review staff, with a trunk 
caliper not less than 4" and a total cumulative caliper area equal to 1.5 times the 
caliper area of the tree(s) removed. Caliper shall be as measured by the American 
Nurseryman's Association standards. For example, if a 12" caliper tree is removed, it 
must be replaced with either one 18" caliper tree or three 6" caliper trees or five 4" 
caliper trees. The replacement requirement may be modified upon a showing made 
to the Design Review Committee or the Design Review staff of disease or death of the 
tree which was not caused by neglect. 
 

31. An Occupancy Permit will not be issued by the Planning and Development Services 
Department until all of these conditions have been met. In the event a condition(s) 
cannot be met by the desired date of occupancy, the Planning Director will 
determine whether the condition(s) is bondable or should be completed, and if 
determined to be bondable, a bond or other surety acceptable to Boise City will be 
required in the amount of 110% of the value of the condition(s) that is incomplete. 
 

32. No change in the terms and conditions of this approval shall be valid unless in writing 
and signed by the applicant or his authorized representative and an authorized 
representative of Boise City. The burden shall be upon the applicant to obtain the 
written confirmation of any change and not upon Boise City. 
 

33. Any change by the applicant in the planned use of the property, which is the subject 
of this application, shall require the applicant to comply with all rules, regulations, 
ordinances, plans, or other regulatory and legal restrictions in force at the time the 
applicant, or successors of interest, advise Boise City of intent to change the planned 
use of the property described herein, unless a variance in said requirements or other 
legal relief is granted pursuant to the law in effect at the time the change in use is 
sought. 

 



1 

TO:     John Hale, Chairman, CCDC Board Executive Committee 
FM: John Brunelle, Executive Director  
RE:     CCDC Operations Report – July 2017 

This month’s written report to the board is an abbreviated mid-summer version. The regular 
detailed CCDC project updates will return as part of the August board meeting packet.  As you 
know, the July board meeting agenda is not extensive, but we do have items needing review and 
approval so your participation in the call-in meeting is appreciated. If you would like to be updated 
on any specific initiatives prior to the August meeting please feel free to call me directly. 

CCDC & LEADERSHIP BOISE 
It’s a pleasure to share good news with you regarding CCDC and Boise Chamber of Commerce’s 
“Leadership Boise” program: Joey Chen has been accepted into the 2017-2019 program, making 
her a member of the LB Class of ’19. Congrats to 
Joey!  Our other active CCDC/LB member, Doug 
Woodruff, is on track to graduate with the Class of ’18 
and will be chairing the Planning Committee for the 
Infrastructure and Environment session this coming 
year. The agency is well represented by Joey and 
Doug! 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
In case you missed this coverage, our own Matt 
Edmond, along with his wife Shari, were featured in 
the Idaho Statesman during preparations for the 4th of 
July celebration. Great to see CCDC people engaged 
in the community service. Here’s a link to an interview. 

CC ANDERSON BUILDING LIVES ON! 
The day finally came, many many months after 
CCDC’s initial conversations with Athlos Academies, 
the Grand Opening was held last Friday. The adaptive 
re-use of the CC Anderson building illustrates a CCDC 
key strategy (from page 16 in our Annual Report): 
“Redeveloping properties within our districts 
enhances the urban environment, honors our 
heritage, and fuels economic growth.”  We’re thrilled 
to have this important block reactivated with our new 
neighbors and the anticipated visitors coming to 
Athlos HQ! See photos from the Grand Opening on 
the following page.  

http://www.idahostatesman.com/news/local/community/our-community-blog/article159278344.html


2 


	07-10-2017 Board Meeting Agenda
	June Paid Invoice Report
	6-12-2017 Board Meeting Minutes
	CONSENT 1 - ID Power Agreement
	CONSENT 2 - Verasso Type 1 Agreement
	CONSENT 3_Pioneer Corner T4 agreement
	ACTION A - 2017 Streetscape Award
	Action B - Afton Phase II
	July 2017 Ops Report



